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The Ontario Provincial Synod
To:

The Metropolitan and other Oﬃcers of the Ontario Provincial Synod
The Bishops and Chancellors
The Clerical, Lay and Youth Delegates of the Synod of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario

Notice of Meeting
In accordance with the Constitution of the Provincial Synod, the Provincial Executive Council has accepted the oﬀer of
the Bishop and Diocese of Ottawa to host the Thirty-sixth Session of the Provincial Synod.
The Synod will convene at 7:30 pm on Tuesday, October 9, 2018 at the Delta Hotel in downtown Ottawa and will
conclude at noon on Friday, October 12, 2018.
Ven. Canon Dr. Harry Huskins,
Executive Oﬃcer, Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario
Box 1168, Sault Ste. Marie, ON, P6A 5N7
705-256-5061 x3
provsyn@soonet.ca

!4

Draft Agenda
The Ontario Provincial Synod
Theme: A Hopeful Church in Changing Times
(to become final when adopted by the Synod)
Agenda - Draft #7
Tuesday, October 09, 2018:
12 Noon
Meeting of the Provincial House of Bishops, with lunch and dinner
3:00 pm - 7:00 pm Synod Registration
4:00 pm
Orientation Session with The Ven. Harry Huskins, Executive Officer
All members are invited, but first time delegates are urged to attend
5:00 pm
Dinner, on your own
7:30 pm
Opening Eucharist, with The Rt. Rev, Bill Cliif’s 1st Address. Bishop’s not vesting.
9:00 pm
Hospitality Suite
Wednesday, October 10, 2018:
7:30 am
Breakfast
Information desk open throughout the day
No specific breaks are planned, but refreshments will be available throughout the day
9:00 am
Morning Worship: The Rt. Rev. Terry Dance
9:15 am
Business necessary to constitute the Synod
• Call to Order by the Metropolitan, The Most Rev. Colin Johnson
• Introduction of the head table
• Greetings from invited guests: The Most Rev. Fred Hiltz and others
• Housekeeping arrangements
• Election of the Assessors
• Election of the Honorary Secretaries
• Agenda Check
• Courtesies of the House and Floor
• Omnibus Motion organizing the Synod
10:15 am
Nominations from the floor for Prolocutor
10:20 am
Prayers before the beginning of the election for Metropolitan
Election and collection of first ballots
10:30 am
Moosonee Missional Moment
10:45 am
First overview of the work of the last triennium: The Rt. Rev. John Chapman
• Ontario Provincial Commission on Theological Education (OPCOTE)
• Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC)
11:00 am
11:20 am
11:35 am
12 Noon

Government Secretariat: Donna Cansfield
Results of the first ballot for Metropolitan
Distribute second ballot if needed
Niagara Missional Moment
Prayers and Grace, lunch in common

Cathedral
Hotel Room: 1719
Grand Salon

Grand Salon
Hotel Room: 1719

Outside Plenary
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon

Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon

Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
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1:00 pm
1:10 pm
1:40 pm
1:55 pm
3:45 pm
3:50 pm
4:05 pm
4:45 pm
5:00 pm
5:30 pm
6:00 pm
7:30 pm
8:00 pm
8:15 pm
8:30 pm
8:45 pm
9:00 pm

Results of the second ballot for Metropolitan
Distribute first ballot for Prolocutor
Bible Study: The Rt. Rev. Terry Dance
Toronto Missional Moment
Canon XXI, discussion and Q&A: Chancellor David Jones
Results of the first ballot for Prolocutor
Distribute second ballot if needed
Ontario Missional Moment
General Synod Update: The Most Rev. Fred Hiltz
Results of the second ballot for Prolocutor
Break
Reception in Honour of The Most Rev. Colin Johnson
Dinner
The Rt. Rev. Bill Cliif’s 2nd Address
Second overview of the work of the last triennium: Donna Cansfield
• Eldercare
Third overview of the work of the last triennium: The Ven. Kathryn Otley
• Homelessness
Huron Missional Moment
Closing Prayer: The Rt. Rev. Bill Cliff
Hospitality Suite

Thursday, October 11, 2018:
7:30 am
Breakfast
Information desk open throughout the day
No specific breaks are planned, but refreshments will be available throughout the day
9:00 am
9:30 am
9:45 am

11:15 am
11:45 am
12 Noon
1:30 pm
2:30 pm
2:45 pm
4:00 pm
5:00 pm

Morning Prayer and Bible Study: The Rt. Rev. Terry Dance
Agenda Check
A Hopeful Church in Changing Times: Policy Panel
Presenter: The Rev. Canon Laurette Glasgow
Colin Robertson: Vice President and Fellow at the Canadian Global Affairs Institute
Senator Peter Harder: PC Government Representative in the Senate
The Most Rev. Colin Johnson: Archbishop of Toronto and Moosonee
Report on Continuing Education: The Ven. David Selzer
Ottawa Mission Moment
Prayers and Grace
Plenary Discussion on Social Media; Where do we go?
Algoma Missional Moment
Senior Staff Consultation; The Way Forward: The Ven. Tanya Phibbs and
The Ven. David Selzer
Deadline for submission of additional motions
Dinner

Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Panorama Room
Panorama Room
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Hotel Room: 1719

Outside Plenary
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon

Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
Grand Salon
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7:30 pm

Eucharist with Installation of Metropolitan and Prolocutor followed by reception
Preacher: The Most Rev. Fred Hiltz

Friday, October 12, 2018:
7:30 am
Breakfast in common
Information desk open throughout the day
No specific breaks are planned, but refreshments will be available throughout the day
9:00 am
Morning Prayer and Bible Study: The Rt. Rev. Terry Dance

Cathedral

Outside Plenary
Grand Salon
Grand Salon

9:30 am
9:45 am

Agenda Check
New England Company

Grand Salon

10:00 am
10:30 am

Budget
Remaining Business
• Selection of the Provincial Council, by Dioceses
• Priorities for the next triennium
• Remaining Motions
Closing Prayers and Prorogation of the Synod

Grand Salon

11:45 am

Grand Salon
Grand Salon

Grand Salon
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Notice of Elections
Elections to the oﬃces of Metropolitan, Prolocutor, Lay Secretary, and Clerical Secretary will be held at the Provincial
Synod session in October 2018.
Metropolitan
The Metropolitan, carrying the honorific title of Archbishop, is the senior Bishop of the Province and the President of
the Provincial Synod, of the Provincial House of Bishops, and Chair of the Provincial Council. Canon II (The
Metropolitan) provides that “only the Diocesan Bishops of the Province shall be eligible for election to the oﬃce of
Metropolitan. A retiring Metropolitan shall be eligible for re-election.”
The Metropolitan shall also preside at the election of all bishops in the Province except where the diocesan canons
make other provisions, and shall speak on behalf of the Anglican Church of Canada in the Province.
The Metropolitan shall be elected by the members of the Provincial Synod, acting as an Electoral College.
The election shall be by secret ballot taken by Orders (bishops and clergy voting together), and the voting shall
continue by consecutive ballots until one diocesan bishop obtains a clear majority of the valid votes cast by the
members of each Order.”
Prolocutor
The Constitution provides that “there shall be a Prolocutor who shall be elected by the Provincial Synod from the
House of Delegates and who shall be the Vice-President of the Provincial Synod. In the absence, or at the request of
the Metropolitan, the Prolocutor shall preside at meetings of Provincial Synod.”
Lay and Clerical Secretaries
Lay and Clerical Secretaries are elected at each regular session of our Provincial Synod. The most important function of
the Secretaries is to examine the draft Journal of the Provincial Synod session to ensure that there are no errors, and
then sign the oﬃcial copy of the Journal which is then preserved in the archives. In former times they took and kept
the Minutes of the Synod sessions and of the meetings of the Provincial Council on which they also serve. Today a
recording secretary takes the Minutes of these meetings and the oﬃcial papers of the Synod are kept in the care of the
Executive Oﬃcers.

!8

Rules of Order
For the Sessions of the Synod
It is the duty of the Chair to ensure that the voice of the minority is heard, that the will of the majority prevails, and
that the will of the Synod is carried out.
To enable this to happen:
1. The Chair shall preserve order and decorum, and shall rule on all questions of order, subject to an Appeal to the
Synod. Such an appeal must be made immediately and shall be put to a vote without debate. When called
upon to decide a Point of Order the Chair shall state the rule applicable, and this shall be received without
argument or comment from the floor.
2. Committees or other groups may be appointed by the President for the purpose of more eﬀectively carrying
out the work of the Synod during its Sessions. These appointments shall be confirmed by the Synod. Any
matter coming before the Synod may be referred by the Chair to the proper committee or group for
consideration and report.
3. The Chair shall ensure that guests and other observers attending the Synod are made welcome and treated
with courtesy. No one other than a Member of the Synod shall be present on the floor during the actual
conduct of the Synod’s sessions, except with the expressed permission of the Chair. A separate seating area
shall be made available for the comfort and convenience of guests and others attending the Synod.
4. The Chair may extend the Courtesy of the House to guests who are invited to speak to the Synod for a specific
purpose, and they shall speak only with the permission of the Chair and only for that purpose.
5. The Chair may, in exceptional circumstances, grant the Courtesy of the Floor to a guest. A person holding the
Courtesy of the Floor may be seated on the floor among the Members of the Synod.
6. No one except a Member of the Synod shall speak to the Synod, except a person granted the Courtesy of the
House or of the Floor by the Chair. No one granted the Courtesy of the Floor shall speak without first asking
the permission of the Chair, which shall only be granted if the Chair thinks it wise.
7. Any member who wishes to speak shall rise and address the Chair. The mover of a Motion may not speak for
more than five minutes, or any other speaker for more than three minutes, except with the permission of the
Synod.
8. When two or more members rise at the same time, the Chair shall name the member to speak first.
9. A Member called to order while speaking shall sit down and cease speaking, unless permitted to explain by the
Chair.
10. No motion or amendment shall be considered as before the Synod unless seconded, reduced to writing, and
opened for debate by the Chair.
11. No Member except the mover of a Resolution, who as mover, is entitled to reply and thus close the debate,
shall speak more than once, except by permission of the Synod.
12. A Member may rise to explain, if permitted by the Chair.
13. No original Motion, except for Motions of Course, shall be received without notice, except by the permission of
the Synod.
14. When a Motion is before the Synod, and a Motion for the Question is called for by a Member, the Chair shall
decide if that Motion for the Question shall be put to a vote, subject to an Appeal to the Synod.
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15. A Motion, having been read to the Synod by the Chair, cannot be withdrawn, amended or altered without the
consent of the Synod.
16. When a question is under consideration no other Motion shall be received by the Chair, except Motions to
Adjourn, to Lay on the Table, to Consider Clause by Clause (Ad Seriatim), to Postpone to a Certain Time, to
Postpone Indefinitely, to Refer to a Committee, to Amend, or to Put the Question, and Motions for any of these
purposes shall have precedence in the order named.
17. No more than one Amendment to a proposed Amendment of a question shall be in order.
18. A Motion to Adjourn shall always be in order.
19. A Motion to Adjourn or to Lay on the Table shall be decided without debate.
20.A Motion to Suspend a Rule of Order shall take precedence over all other motions, and shall be decided
without debate; and no Rule of Order shall be suspended without two-thirds of the Members present voting in
favour of the Motion.
21. When amendments are made to a Motion, the amendments and the original Motion shall be placed before the
Synod for consideration and vote in the reverse order to that in which they were brought forward.
22. When the Question is finally put by the Chair, either on an original Motion or on its amendments, no further
debate shall be allowed; the Chair first declaring that “The Question is called”.
23. In voting, except in the case of a Vote by Ballot, the Chair shall first call for those in favour, and then those
against; in case of an equality of votes the question may be decided by the Casting Vote of the Chair if the
Chair wishes to vote, failing this the Question is defeated.
24. Any three Members may call on the Chair for a Vote by Orders, before the Question is called by the Chair, in
which case the Members of the Synod shall divide into the House of Bishops and the House of Delegates
consisting of the lay and clerical members. A majority in both Houses shall be necessary to carry a Question.
25. Any three Members may call on the Chair for a Recorded Vote, before the Question is called by the Chair, in
which case the Chair shall call for the reading of the names of the Members. Each Member shall vote by voice
at the call of their name, and this vote shall be recorded and entered into the Minutes.
26. A Vote by Ballot may be taken if the Chair thinks it wise.
27. A Question, having been determined by the Chair to have been previously considered in the session, shall not
be re-considered except by the unanimous consent of the Synod.
28. The planning for and preparation of the necessary arrangements, documents and appointments to sessional
committees, both prior to and during the Session, shall be done under the direction and authority of the
President.
29. In all cases where the Synod has passed a motion or decided on a course of action and the wording does not
clearly indicate who is to carry out the action, or how it is to be done, or by what time it is to be completed, or
whether or not the results shall be reported back to the Synod or the Provincial Council, the President shall be
responsible for carrying out the will of the Synod and making these decisions.
30.Resolutions shall come to the Synod from 1 the constituent dioceses of the Province, 2 the Provincial House of
Bishops, 3 the Provincial Executive Council, 4 the General Synod, and 5 individual Members of the Synod.
Priority for the consideration of Resolutions shall be given in the order named.
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Section I - Constitutional Documents
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The Solemn Declaration of the General Synod of 1893
Adopted by the First Session of the Ontario Provincial Synod in 1912
In the Name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost, Amen.
We, the Bishops, together with the Delegates from the Clergy and Laity of the Church of England in the Dominion of
Canada, now assembled in the first General Synod, hereby make the following Solemn Declaration:
We declare this Church to be, and desire that it shall continue, in full communion with the Church of England
throughout the world, as an integral portion of the one Body of Christ composed of Churches which, united under the
One Divine Head and in the fellowship of the one Holy Catholic and Apostolic Church, hold the one Faith revealed in
Holy Writ, and defined in the Creeds as maintained by the undivided primitive Church in the undisputed Ecumenical
Councils; receive the same Canonical Scriptures of the Old and New Testaments, as containing all things necessary to
salvation; teach the same Word of God; partake of the same Divinely ordained Sacraments, through the ministry of the
same Apostolic Orders, and worship one God and Father through the same Lord Jesus Christ by the same Holy and
Divine Spirit Who is given to them that believe to guide them into all truth.
And we are determined by the help of God to hold and maintain the Doctrine, Sacraments and Discipline of Christ as
the Lord hath commanded in His Holy Word, and as the Church of England hath received and set forth the same in
“The Book of Common Prayer and Administration of the Sacraments and other Rites and Ceremonies of the Church,
according to the Use of the Church of England; together with the Psalter or Psalms of David pointed as they are to be
sung or said in churches; and the Form and Manner of Making, Ordaining, and Consecrating of Bishops, Priests and
Deacons”; and in the Thirty-nine Articles of Religion; and to transmit the same unimpaired to our posterity.
The original Ecclesiastical Province of Canada was organized in 1860 and included the then existing dioceses of
Toronto, Huron, Ontario, Montreal and Quebec. The dioceses of Fredericton and Nova Scotia subsequently chose to
join this Province.
In 1912 the old Province of Canada was divided into the present Ecclesiastical Provinces of Ontario (Algoma, Huron,
Moosonee, Niagara, Ontario, Ottawa, and Toronto and the Province of Canada (consisting of the dioceses in the secular
Provinces of Quebec, New Brunswick, Newfound, and Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Island).
To aid in the division of the old Province of Canada the General Synod enacted the following Canon.
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Canon XV of General Synod - Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario
1. The Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario
On the Provincial Synod of Canada consenting hereto, the Dioceses of Toronto, Huron, Ontario, Niagara, Algoma and
Ottawa, at present comprised within the Ecclesiastical Province of Canada, shall constitute a new ecclesiastical
province, to be known as “The Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario”, and shall cease to be under the jurisdiction of the
Province of Canada.
2. Provincial Synod
There shall be a Provincial Synod of the said Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario, which shall be known as “The Provincial
Synod of Ontario”, and shall consist of all the bishops of The Anglican Church of Canada having Sees within the said
ecclesiastical province, or executing by due authority the episcopate as co-adjutor, suﬀragan, assistant, or missionary
bishop therein, and of delegates chosen from the members of the clergy and laity thereof.
3. First Session
As soon as the resolutions of consent shall have been passed by the Provincial Synod of Canada, the bishops and
clerical and lay delegates present from the dioceses comprising the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario shall withdraw
from the session of the provincial synod, and as soon thereafter as conveniently possible shall assemble in session as
the Provincial Synod of Ontario, under the presidency of the Metropolitan of Ontario or there being no Metropolitan of
Ontario present, under the presidency of the senior bishop of Ontario present.
4. Provincial Synod of Canada
After consent as aforesaid the bishops and clerical and lay delegates from the remaining dioceses of the Ecclesiastical
Province of Canada shall constitute the Provincial Synod of Canada and shall continue to exercise all the powers
thereof over all the remaining dioceses.
5. Constitution of Synod
The Constitution, Order of Proceedings and Rules of Order of the Provincial Synod of Canada mutatis mutandis shall
be the Constitution, Order of Proceedings and Rules of Order of the Provincial Synod of Ontario until the last
mentioned synod shall have adopted a new Constitution, Order of Proceedings and Rules of Order.
6. Canons of Synod
All Canons of the Provincial Synod of Canada, so far as the same shall be applicable to the Province of Ontario, shall be
deemed to be Canons of the Provincial Synod of Ontario until or unless the synod shall otherwise enact.
7. Transfer of Diocese
With the consent of the dioceses aﬀected, the Provincial Synod of Ontario may enter into agreements with the
Provincial Synod of Canada or with the Provincial Synod of Rupert’s Land for the transfer to the Ecclesiastical Province
of Ontario of any territory comprised within either of those provinces, and such territory shall upon and after the date
agreed upon become and constitute part of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario and be subject to the provincial
synod thereof.
Note: the Diocese of Moosonee transferred from the Ecclesiastical Province of Rupert’s Land to the Ecclesiastical
Province of Ontario on October 8, 1935.
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An Act to Incorporate the Provincial Synod on Ontario
Of the Church of England in Canada and To Make Provisions Respecting Vestry Meetings
(11 George V, chapter 133, assented to April 08, 1921)
Preamble:
Whereas the Provincial Synod of the Church of England in Canada for the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario is
composed of the Archbishop and Bishops of the said Church in the Province of Ontario and of clerical and lay
delegates from all the dioceses of the said Church in the said Province; and whereas a petition has been presented
praying that the said provincial synod may be incorporated; and whereas by an Act passed by the Parliament of the
late Province of Upper Canada in the third year of the reign of Her late Majesty Queen Victoria, chaptered 74, and
intituled “An Act to make provisions for the management of the Temporalities of the United Church of England and
Ireland in this province and for other purposes therein mentioned” and commonly known and hereinafter referred to
as The Church Temporalities Act, it was provided that a meeting of the vestry of every church within the meaning of
the said Act should be holden on Monday in Easter Week in each and every year for the election of church wardens,
and it was further provided that the members of such vestry at the said meeting as aforesaid should have power to
make by-laws for the regulation of their proceedings and for the management of the temporalities of the church or
parish to which they belong.
And whereas the said Provincial Synod of the Church of England in Canada for the Province of Ontario has by its
petition prayed that the said Act of the late Province of Upper Canada should be amended so as to enable the synods
of the several dioceses of the said church within the Province of Ontario from time to time to fix the date at which the
vestry meetings should or might be held within each of the said dioceses respectively; and whereas it is expedient to
grant the prayer of the said petition:
Therefore, His Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario
enacts as follows:
Incorporation of the Provincial Synod
1. The Provincial Synod of the Church of England in Canada for the Province of Ontario is hereby declared to be a
body corporate under the name and style of “The Provincial Synod of the Church of England in Canada for the
Province of Ontario,” hereinafter called “The Provincial Synod.”
Power to acquire and hold land, etc.
2. The said provincial synod may acquire, receive, take and hold by purchase, gift, devise and bequest, land or
personal property or any estate or interest therein and may use, enjoy, sell, transfer, dispose of, mortgage or
hypothecate the same or any part thereof and may apply the proceeds of such property for the purposes of
the said church subject to the terms of any trust on which the same may have been received or held, and any
devise of real estate shall be subject to the laws respecting the devises of real estate to religious corporations
in force at the time of such devise.
Power to pass canons re vestry meetings
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3. Notwithstanding anything contained in the said The Church Temporalities Act or in any Act amending such Act
the Synod of any Diocese of the said Church of England in Canada in the Province of Ontario may from time to
time pass a canon or canons and may from time to time repeal or amend the same providing that the
meetings of vestries for the election of church wardens whether or pewed or free churches within the diocese,
may or shall be held at such time or times as shall be mentioned in the said canon or canons.
By-laws for regulation of proceedings of vestry meetings
4. It shall be in the power of the members of vestries of either pewed or free churches at such meetings as
aforesaid to make by-laws for the regulation of their proceedings and the management of the temporalities of
the church or parish to which they belong; provided that the same shall not be repugnant to any law or statute
in force in this province or contrary to any Canon of the Church of England in Canada.
In 1955 the General Synod enacted a measure changing the name of the nation Church from The Church of England in
Canada to The Anglican Church of Canada.
In 1957 the Ontario Legislature enacted amended the Religious Institutions Act to reflect this change.

An Act to amend The Religious Institutions Act
(6 Elizabeth II, chapter 108, assented to April 03, 1957)
Her Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario enacts as
follows:
1. Subsection 1 of section 19 of The Religious Institutions Act is amended by striking out “the Church of England in
Ontario, formerly or otherwise called” in the third and fourth lines and inserting in lieu thereof “The Anglican
Church of Canada, formerly or otherwise called the Church of England in Canada, or”, so that the subsection
shall read as follows:
a. All the rights, powers, and privileges, conferred upon any society or congregation by this Act shall extend
and apply to The Anglican Church of Canada, formerly or otherwise called The Church of England in
Canada, or the United Church of England and Ireland in Canada, or the United Church of England and
Ireland in Upper Canada, or the Church of England in Upper Canada.
2. Where in any general or special Act, the name The Church of England in Canada is referred to, it shall be
deemed to be a reference to The Anglican Church of Canada.
3. This Act comes into force on the day it receives Royal Assent.
4. This Act may be cited as The Religious Institutions Amendment Act, 1957.
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Constitutions of the Provincial Synod
Of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario
The Jurisdiction of the Provincial Synod of Ontario
1. The Provincial Synod of Ontario (the "Provincial Synod") shall have authority and jurisdiction in all matters aﬀecting
the general interests and well-being of the Church within its jurisdiction in the following matters:
a. subject to the provision of any Canon enacted by General Synod, the constitution and organization of the
Provincial Synod, including the regulation of the time and place of its meetings, the order and conduct of its
proceedings, and the appointment, functions and duties of its oﬃcers, commissions and committees for the
proper conduct of its aﬀairs;
b. with the consent of General Synod, and of any diocese aﬀected, the adjustment of the boundaries of the
Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario (the "Province"), and the division and re-arrangement of the Province;
c. with the consent of General Synod, and the dioceses aﬀected, the division of the Province into dioceses, the
establishment of missionary dioceses within the Province, the division of existing dioceses and the adjustment
or re-arrangement of diocesan boundaries;
d. the confirmation of the election, consecration and resignation of bishops within the Province;
e. the election of a metropolitan bishop and the definition of Metropolitical duties, powers and authority;
f. the constitution of a Provincial Court of Appeal, with original and appellate jurisdiction, including procedure
therein and enforcement of its decrees and judgments;
g. provision for the ecclesiastical discipline and trial of bishops in the Province
h. the regulation of the ministrations of the clergy and others within the Province, including the oaths and
subscriptions of the clergy within the Province;
i. the authorization of special forms of prayers, services and ceremonies for use within the Province, for which no
provisions have been made under the authority of General Synod or of the House of Bishops of The Anglican
Church of Canada;
j. the relations of the Church to civil authorities and to public education within the Province;
k. the administration of any fund or trust established in respect of the Provincial Synod;
l. the formation and constitution of provincial branches of organizations and societies established by General
Synod for the promotion of the work of the General Synod;
m. the consideration, promotion and advancement of any object or matter for the general advantage of the
Church in Canada or in the Province, referred to the Provincial Synod by the General Synod.
2. Nothing contained in section one shall limit or aﬀect the powers, jurisdiction and authority inherent in the oﬃce of
bishop, or exercised collectively by the bishops of the Church sitting as the House of Bishops of the Province or of
The Anglican Church of Canada.
The Composition Organisation and Procedure of the Provincial Synod
1. The Provincial Synod shall consist of:
a. all of the diocesan, co-adjutor, suﬀragan or full-time assistant bishops of each diocese of the Province, the
Chancellor of the Province, the chancellors of each diocese or, in the absence or inability to attend of any such
chancellor, the vice-chancellor, if any, of such diocese, the Executive Officer, the Treasurer and four clerical and
four lay delegates from each diocese of the Province, such delegates to be selected by each diocese in
accordance with its own rules of procedure.
!16

2.

3.

4.

5.
6.

b. In addition, each diocese in the Province, in accordance with its own rules of procedure, shall select one youth
delegate to be a member of Provincial Synod, who shall be at least sixteen years of age upon the opening of
the next Provincial Synod, and who shall be under the age of twenty-six years upon the termination of the
next Provincial Synod. [Article 1 (b) added by the 2004 Synod]
If any delegate from any diocese of the Province should die, resign or transfer from the diocese which selected such
delegate or is, for any other reason unable to attend meetings of Provincial Synod, the diocesan synod concerned
shall, in accordance with its own rules of procedure, provide a substitute for such delegate, of the same order,
which substitute shall continue to act as a member of Provincial Synod and, if elected or appointed thereto, of its
committees and commissions until the next meeting of Provincial Synod. Each diocese shall certify its delegates
and a committee of Provincial Synod appointed by the Metropolitan shall attest their credentials.
The Provincial Synod shall meet every third year at a time and a place to be determined by the Executive Council.
Special meetings of the Provincial Synod may be held at the call of the Metropolitan or at the request of the
Executive Council. Notice of any meeting of Provincial Synod shall be transmitted to all members thereof at least
thirty days prior to the date of such meeting, and shall be accompanied by such information and material as is
reasonable concerning the business to be transacted.
The Provincial Synod shall be organized into a House of Bishops (consisting of the diocesan, co-adjutor, suffragan
and full-time assistant bishops of each diocese) and a House of Delegates (consisting of all other members of
Provincial Synod). The houses shall meet in joint session unless either House shall, by a majority vote, otherwise
determine.
The Metropolitan shall be the President of Provincial Synod and of the House of Bishops, and shall (subject to
section six) preside at all meetings of the Provincial Synod.
There shall be a Prolocutor who shall be elected by the Provincial Synod from the House of Delegates and who shall
be the Vice-President of Provincial Synod. In the absence, or at the request, of the Metropolitan, the Prolocutor shall
preside at meetings of Provincial Synod. Should the oﬃce of Prolocutor become vacant for any reason between the
meetings of Provincial Synod, such oﬃce shall be filled from the House of Delegates by the Executive Council until
the next meeting of Provincial Synod.

7.
a. There shall be a Chancellor of Provincial Synod who shall be a judge of a court of record of the Province of
Ontario or a barrister or solicitor of at least ten years' standing at the bar of the Province of Ontario. The
Chancellor shall be appointed by the Metropolitan and shall hold oﬃce during the pleasure of the Metropolitan.
b. The Chancellor shall provide legal advisory services to the Metropolitan and the Executive Council. The
Chancellor shall be one of the Assessors of Provincial Synod.
8.
a. The Provincial Synod shall elect a Clerical and a Lay Secretary who shall keep regular accounts of all
proceedings, attest all acts and proceedings of Provincial Synod, and deliver over all records and documents to
their successors. If a vacancy occurs in the oﬃce of Clerical Secretary or Lay Secretary between meetings of
the Provincial Synod, such vacancy shall be filled by the Metropolitan until the next meeting of the Provincial
Synod from among the delegates to the preceding Provincial Synod of the same order as the person formerly
holding the vacated oﬃce.
b. The Provincial Synod shall elect two Assessors, who, together with the Chancellor, shall act as legal advisors to
the Chairperson on the Constitution and Rules of Order of Provincial Synod.
c. The Metropolitan, with the approval of the Executive Council, shall appoint Executive Oﬃcer(s), a Treasurer and
such other oﬃcers as shall be required, and the Metropolitan, subject to the ratification at the next meeting of
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the Executive Council, shall fill any vacancy occurring in any such oﬃce between the meetings of Provincial
Synod.
d. The Executive Oﬃcer(s), under the direction of the Metropolitan, shall:
i. exercise a general oversight of the work of the Provincial Synod, its commissions, committees and
Executive Council;
ii. make the necessary arrangements for meetings of the Provincial Synod and the Executive Council;
iii. preserve all journals, files, papers, reports, memorials and other documents of Provincial Synod and hold
them in safe custody; keep an authentic record, with the oﬃcial deeds of the consecration or translation of
bishops in the Province; keep a proper book of records and to enter therein all Canons, and changes in
Canons, or amendments to the Constitution; and report to Provincial Synod at each session. The Executive
Oﬃcer shall preserve one copy of the Journal of each Provincial Synod and of the minutes of each
Executive Council meeting as adopted by the next Provincial Synod or Executive Council (with
amendments if any) signed by the Metropolitan and sealed with the Provincial Synod seal as the oﬃcial
copy of the minutes of that Provincial Synod or Executive Council. It shall be the responsibility of the
dioceses in the Province to convey to the Executive Oﬃcer after the consecration of a bishop certified
copies of the original Certificate of Election and Deed of Consecration together with other materials of
historical interest related to the consecration. Until such time as appropriate safekeeping arrangements
have been made by Provincial Synod the archives of the Province will be stored in safekeeping with the
archives of General Synod;
iv. perform such other duties as are defined by the Constitution, Canons and resolutions of the Provincial
Synod or the Executive Council, and shall be assistant to the Metropolitan in the Metropolitan's capacity as
President of the Provincial Synod.
e. The Treasurer shall receive and disburse all monies of Provincial Synod, under the authority of Provincial Synod
or the Executive Council, and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by Canon or resolution of
Provincial Synod. The Treasurer shall present the annual financial statements, reported on by the auditors, to
each annual meeting of the Executive Council for its approval and to each meeting of Provincial Synod.
f. The Provincial Synod shall appoint two auditors who shall not be oﬃcers or employees of Provincial Synod or
the Executive Council, and who shall either be public accountants licensed under the Public Accountancy Act,
R. S. O. 1980 Ch. 405 or persons who, by training and experience, are competent for the task. Such auditors
shall annually conduct an examination of the financial aﬀairs of Provincial Synod and of the Executive Council
and report on the financial statements prepared by the Treasurer.
9. The corporate seal of Provincial Synod shall be kept by the Executive Oﬃcer(s) and shall be aﬃxed to all deeds and
documents requiring it. All such deeds and documents shall be signed by either of the Metropolitan or the
Prolocutor together with the Executive Oﬃcer.
10.
a. The Constitution of the Provincial Synod may be amended by a two-thirds majority of those present and
voting of each House, voting separately, at a session of the Provincial Synod;
b. Any Canon of the Provincial Synod may be enacted or amended by a two-thirds majority of those present and
voting of the Houses voting together at a session of the Provincial Synod.
c. No Canon, or amendment to the Constitution or to any existing Canon, shall be proposed or enacted unless it
has been considered and approved by the Executive Council and notice of the same has been transmitted to
the members of Provincial Synod at least thirty (30) days before the meeting of Provincial Synod.
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11. The proceedings of Provincial Synod shall, where practicable, be governed by the Rules of Motion and Debate of
the Rules of Order and Procedure of General Synod.
12. A quorum of Provincial Synod, the Executive Council, and any committee or commission of Provincial Synod shall
consist of one-half of the members thereof.
13. The Provincial Executive Council
a. The work of the Provincial Synod between sessions shall be carried on by an Executive Council.
b. The Executive Council shall consist of:
a. The Metropolitan
b. The Prolocutor
c. The Chancellor
d. The Executive Oﬃcer(s)
e. The Clerical Secretary
f. The Lay Secretary
g. The Treasurer
h. One representative of the Provincial House of Bishops from each diocese, including the Metropolitan, and
one lay representative, and one clerical representative from the elected members of Provincial Synod from
each diocese. [Amended to the present reading of the text by the 2001 Synod]
i. One youth delegate, to be chosen by the youth delegates from amongst themselves.
c. The Executive Committee shall meet annually, and may meet more often at the call of the Metropolitan or, in
his absence, by the Prolocutor.
d. The Metropolitan shall be the Chairperson of the Executive Council and, in the absence, or at the request, of
the Metropolitan, the Prolocutor shall preside at meetings of the Executive Council.
e. If a vacancy occurs in the Executive Council because of the death, retirement or transfer from the diocese of a
representative from among the elected members of Provincial Synod, such vacancy may be filled between
sessions of the Provincial Synod by a nominee of the diocesan bishop of the diocese concerned from the
members of the diocese. All other vacancies in the Executive Council may be filled between sessions of
Provincial Synod by a nominee of the Metropolitan.
14. Commissions, Committees, and Task Forces of Provincial Synod, or its Executive Council, shall establish such
commissions, committees, or task forces as it shall deem necessary for its work. It shall make provision for
membership, terms of reference, co-opting of members, expenses and duties of each such commission, committee,
or task force. Provincial Synod, or its Executive Council, where such commission, committee, or task force has been
established by the Executive Council or Provincial Synod, shall determine when a commission, committee, or task
force shall be discharged. [Amended to the present reading of text by the 2001 Synod]
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The Canons of the Ontario Provincial Synod
Canon I
Canon II

The Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario and its Dioceses
The Metropolitan

Canon III
Canon IV

The Election and Resignation of Bishops
The Licensing of Clergy

Canon V
Canon VI

Discipline and the Court of Appeal
Enactment of the General Synod

Canon VII

A Canon to Provide for the Administration of the Diocese of Moosonee as a Mission Area of the
Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario
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Canon I - Ecclesiastical Province and its Dioceses
1. The Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario of the Anglican Church of Canada ("the Province") consists of the following
dioceses: Toronto, Huron, Ontario, Niagara, Algoma, Ottawa and Moosonee.
2. The Provincial Synod may subdivide any diocese, or alter or rearrange the boundaries between dioceses with the
consent of the diocese or dioceses concerned, after seeing that appropriate financial and other arrangements are
made.
3. Each diocese may be divided into archdeaconries, regional deaneries, parishes and such other forms of subdivision,
and with the use of such other terms, as each diocese may determine. Parishes may be composed of one or more
congregations and each diocese may combine or divide such parishes with, or into, other parishes or may alter the
boundaries of such parishes, all subject to prior consultation by such diocese with the parish or parishes aﬀected. A
diocese may arrange for types of ministry other than the parish ministry in order to meet the needs of the people
in particular localities or circumstances.
4. Each diocese within the Province may, at any time and from time to time, cooperate with other dioceses within the
Province, or elsewhere in the Anglican Communion, in undertaking special projects or other matters of common
interest to them.

Canon II - the Metropolitan
1. There shall be a Metropolitan who shall be one of the Diocesan Bishops of the Province, shall be the presiding
bishop of the Province and, on assuming this oﬃce, shall be the senior bishop of the Province, with the title of
Archbishop.
2. Only the Diocesan Bishops of the Province shall be eligible for election to the oﬃce of Metropolitan. A retiring
Metropolitan shall be eligible for re-election.
3. The Metropolitan shall be elected by the members of the Provincial Synod, acting as an Electoral College.
4. The election shall be by secret ballot taken by Orders (bishops and clergy voting together), and the voting shall
continue by consecutive ballots until one diocesan bishop obtains a clear majority of the valid votes cast by the
members of each Order.
5. The Prolocutor shall preside at the election of the Metropolitan.
6. The See of the bishop so elected shall be the Metropolitical See while such oﬃce is held by the bishop so elected.
7. The Metropolitan shall preside at all meetings of the Provincial House of Bishops, the Provincial Synod and the
Executive Council of Provincial Synod (but may, from time to time, delegate the latter two functions to the
Prolocutor), and shall be a member ex-oﬃcio of all commissions and committees of Provincial Synod. The
Metropolitan shall also preside at the election of all bishops in the Province except where the diocesan canons
make other provisions, and shall speak on behalf of the Anglican Church of Canada in the Province.
8. The Metropolitan, together with the Provincial House of Bishops, shall confirm the election of bishops and arrange
for their consecration.
9. It shall be the duty of the Metropolitan to give pastoral care to the bishops of the Province.
10. A Diocesan Synod, with two-thirds of the valid votes cast by the members of each Order, may request the
Metropolitan, after consultation with the Provincial House of Bishops, to assume the powers of the bishop of such
Diocese on a temporary basis.
11. Subject to the provisions of this paragraph eleven, the Metropolitan shall hold oﬃce for a period of six years
following election to such oﬃce, or until death, retirement, or resignation prior to the end of such six year period. In
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the event of such earlier death, retirement, or resignation, the oﬃce of Metropolitan shall be filled, pro ternpore, by
the diocesan bishop of the Province senior by election to that oﬃce. If such six year period expires between regular
sessions of the Provincial Synod, the Metropolitan's term of oﬃce may be extended at the request of the Executive
Council of Provincial Synod, and with the concurrence of the Metropolitan, to the next regular session of the
Provincial Synod. Following the expiration of such six year period, (as extended, if applicable), and at such Synod,
an election for Metropolitan shall be held.
12. The Metropolitan may resign at any time by written notice to the diocesan bishop of the Province senior by election
to that oﬃce, who shall thereupon submit such notice to the members of the Provincial House of Bishops.
13.
a. During a vacancy in the oﬃce of Metropolitan or during serious illness or other incapacity of the Metropolitan,
the diocesan bishop of the Province senior by election to that oﬃce, able and willing to act, shall have the
authority to perform all duties of the Metropolitan and shall be styled "Acting Metropolitan”.
b. A certificate signed by three other diocesan bishops of dioceses within the Province shall be suﬃcient evidence
of the serious illness or other incapacity of the Metropolitan; and
c. The Metropolitan may resume authority by notifying the Acting Metropolitan and submitting a certificate
signed by three other diocesan bishops of diocese within the Province evidencing his or her capacity to resume
such authority.
d. Upon retiring from the oﬃces of Metropolitan and Diocesan Bishop, the retired Metropolitan may continue to
use the honorific title of ‘Archbishop’ in retirement [previous provision repealed with this new provision being
substituted. 2003 Provincial Synod session]
14.
a. If a vacancy occurs in the oﬃce of Metropolitan (other than for serious illness or other incapacity as set out in
section 14 of this Canon) less than twelve months before a regular session of Provincial Synod, a meeting of
the Electoral College shall be held to elect a Metropolitan, either during or immediately following such regular
session;
b. If a vacancy occurs in the oﬃce of Metropolitan (other than for serious illness or other incapacity as set in
Section 14 of this Canon) more than 12 months before a regular session of the Provincial Synod, unless the
Executive Council otherwise directs, a meeting of the Electoral College shall be held to elect a Metropolitan at a
time and place to be fixed by the diocesan bishop of the Province senior by election to that oﬃce, in
consultation with the Executive Council.

Canon III - Election & Resignation of Bishops
1. A bishop shall be elected to such oﬃce by the Synod of a Diocese pursuant to the Canons and Constitution of such
diocese then in force, and written notification thereof shall be transmitted to the Metropolitan within seven days of
such election. On receipt of such confirmation, the Metropolitan shall transmit a notice thereof to all other bishops
of the Province and such other bishops shall, within seven days of receipt of such notification, file with the
Metropolitan any written objection which any such bishop shall have. If the Metropolitan receives no such objection
within such seven day period, the election and confirmation of such bishop shall be deemed to be final. If a written
objection to such election is received by the Metropolitan within such seven day period, the Metropolitan shall
forthwith call a meeting of the Provincial House of Bishops to consider the objection, and a decision of the House of
Bishops with respect to the confirmation or nullification of such election shall be final and binding on all concerned.
2. Objection to the election of a bishop may be taken on any of the following grounds: The person so elected:
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a. not being thirty years of age or more nor a priest in Holy Orders for at least seven years in the Anglican
Communion;
b. being deficient in training or learning;
c. having used simony, collusion, or improper means of election;
d. being guilty of a crime or ecclesiastical oﬀence as set out in Canon XVIII of the General Synod of the Anglican
Church of Canada;
e. teaching or holding at the time, or within the five previous years, anything contrary to the doctrine and
discipline of the Anglican Church of Canada.
3. All bishops in the Province shall hold oﬃce until their resignation or until reaching the age of seventy years,
whichever first occurs. Any bishop may resign prior to attaining the age of seventy years by written notice to the
Metropolitan or, if the oﬃce of Metropolitan is then vacant, to the diocesan bishop of the Province senior by
election to that oﬃce. The Metropolitan, as bishop of a diocese, may resign as such bishop (and, as a result, must
resign as Metropolitan) by written notice to the diocesan bishop of the Province senior by election to that oﬃce.
4. If the bishop, synod, or executive committee (or similar body) of any diocese in the Province believes that additional
episcopal assistance is necessary and desirable in and for the diocese, whether as coadjutor bishop, or suffragan or
assistant bishop or bishops, then, in the absence of a procedure set out in the Canons or Constitution of such
diocese, a resolution to this eﬀect shall be passed by the diocesan synod, and the diocesan bishop shall set out to
the diocesan synod the duties to be assigned to such bishop or bishops. The description of such duties shall be
subject to change as need develops or conditions alter, and all changes shall be reported by the diocesan bishop to
the diocesan synod. Prior to the election of any such bishop, the diocese shall satisfy the Metropolitan that sufficient
financial provision has been, or will be, made with respect to such additional bishop.
5. Where a diocesan bishop determines that additional episcopal assistance in the diocese is necessary but that a
formal election of an additional bishop is not, a diocesan bishop may appoint (with the concurrence of the diocesan
executive committee or similar body) a retired bishop from the same or another diocese or a presently active
bishop from another diocese to be an assistant bishop or an assistant to the diocesan bishop to perform such duties,
for such period of time and at such remuneration as may be agreed to. Any full-time assistant bishop or assistant to
the diocesan bishop so appointed may attend Provincial Synod and meetings of the Provincial House of Bishops
and shall be entitled to vote thereat.

Canon IV - Licensing of Clergy
1. No ordained person shall undertake a clerical position in a diocese of the Province without a licence or permit
issued by a bishop of such diocese. Such licence or permit may be issued by the bishop of the diocese in
accordance with the canons of such diocese.
2. If a member of the clergy desires to leave the active ministry of the Church for a temporary period, such member
shall request a leave of absence from the bishop of the diocese for a period not exceeding one year. Such leave of
absence may, but need not, be renewable by the bishop for successive periods of one year each.
3. Oaths and subscriptions shall be taken at ordination as deacon and priest and consecration as bishop and on such
other occasions as shall be required by the diocese in accordance with the forms in use in the diocese concerned.
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Canon V - Discipline & the Court of Appeal
1. Definitions:
In this Canon,
"Canon XVIII" means Canon XVIII of the General Synod of The Anglican Church of Canada;
"Court" means the Court of Appeal for the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario;
"Member of the clergy" means a priest or deacon licensed in a diocese in the Province;
"Member of the laity" means a communicant lay member of the Church residing in the Province.
2. Constitution of the Court:
a. There shall be a court called The Court of Appeal for the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario.
b. The Court shall be composed of five members.
c. On the trial of a bishop, or on the review of a decision of the Metropolitan or a diocesan bishop convicting a
bishop of an oﬀence or imposing a penalty for an oﬀence, three members shall be bishops holding episcopal
oﬃce in the church, one shall be a member of the clergy, and one shall be a member of the laity.
d. On an appeal from the trial of a priest or a deacon, or from the review by a diocesan court of the decision of
the diocesan bishop convicting a priest or a deacon of an oﬀence or imposing a penalty for an oﬀence, one
member shall be a bishop holding episcopal oﬃce in the church, three shall be members of the clergy, and one
shall be a member of the laity.
e. On an appeal from the trial of a lay person, or from the review by a diocesan court of the decision of the
diocesan bishop convicting a lay person of an oﬀence or imposing a penalty for an oﬀence, one member shall
be a bishop holding episcopal oﬃce in the church, one shall be a member of the clergy, and three shall be
members of the laity.
f. On a case stated under section three, subsection (d) one member shall be a bishop holding episcopal oﬃce in
the church, two shall be members of the clergy and two shall be members of the laity.
g. The Executive Council of Provincial Synod shall, at its first regular meeting following each triennial meeting of
the Provincial Synod determine the names of two members of the clergy and two members of the laity from
each diocese in the Province who shall be eligible for appointment to the Court.
h. The persons whose names are determined under subsection (g) shall continue to be eligible for appointment
to the Court until the Executive Council determines the names of persons to replace them.
i. When a case is to be heard by the Court, the Metropolitan shall appoint the members of the Court from among
the bishops holding episcopal oﬃce in the Province and the members of the clergy and laity determined under
subsection (g).
j. If, for any reason, a vacancy occurs among the members of the Court before the hearing commences, the
vacancy shall be filled in the same way. If a vacancy occurs after a hearing has commenced the remaining
members of the Court may continue the hearing and give judgment or may direct that a new Court be
appointed and the hearing be recommenced.
k. The Metropolitan may appoint himself or herself to the Court.
l. No person who is or has been involved, or has an interest, in the case to come before the Court shall be a
member of the Court.
m. The Metropolitan, if a member of the Court, and otherwise the bishop among the members of the Court who is
senior by election to that oﬃce, shall be President of the Court.
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3. Jurisdiction:
a. The Court has the jurisdiction conferred on it by section six of Canon XVIII with respect to the discipline of
bishops.
b. The Court has jurisdiction conferred on it by section four of Canon XVIII to review a decision of the
Metropolitan or of a diocesan bishop convicting a bishop of an oﬀence or imposing a penalty for an oﬀence.
c. The Court has jurisdiction to hear and determine an appeal from any judgment or order of a diocesan court or
the president thereof.
d. The Court has jurisdiction upon a case stated by:
i. the Provincial Synod;
ii. the Executive Council of the Province; or
iii. the House of Bishops of the Province.
to determine the validity or interpretation of any provision of the Constitution of the Provincial Synod or of a
diocesan synod or of any Canon of the Provincial Synod or of a diocesan synod.
e. A priest or deacon of a diocese shall be tried in the diocesan court of that diocese in accordance with the
canons of such diocese and the canons of General Synod, and where a conflict between such canons-arises,
the canons of General Synod shall govern.
4. Assessors:
a. The Court, or the Metropolitan in the exercise of initial jurisdiction, shall be advised by at least two assessors.
b. The Chancellor of the Provincial Synod shall be one of the assessors unless he or she is or has been involved, or
has an interest, in the case.
c. The other assessors shall be chancellors or vice-chancellors of dioceses in the Province.
d. The Metropolitan shall appoint the assessors.
e. If an assessor for any reason is unable to act or to attend a sitting of the court or a trial by the Metropolitan, the
President of the Court or the Metropolitan may appoint a substitute assessor.
f. No one who is or has been involved, or has an interest, in the case shall be appointed as an assessor.
g. The assessors shall advise the Court or the Metropolitan on matters of law and procedure.
5. Oﬀences:
All persons who are subject to the ecclesiastical jurisdiction of the Provincial Court of Appeal shall be liable to
discipline for any of the following oﬀences:
a. conviction of an indictable oﬀence;
b. immorality;
c. disobedience to the bishop to whom such person has sworn canonical obedience;
d. violation of any lawful Constitution or Canon of the Church, whether of a diocese, province, or of the General
Synod by which the person is bound;
e. willful or habitual neglect of the exercise of the ministry of the person without cause;
f. willful or habitual neglect of the duties of any oﬃce or position of trust to which the person has been
appointed or elected;
g. teaching or advocating doctrines contrary to those accepted by the Anglican Church of Canada;
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h. contemptuous or disrespectful conduct towards the bishop of the diocese in matters pertaining to the
administration of the aﬀairs of the diocese or a parish.
6. Charges Against Diocesan Bishops:
a. A charge alleging that a diocesan bishop has committed an oﬀence as defined in section eight of Canon XVIII
may be filed with the Metropolitan by
i. three bishops of the Province, or
ii. three members of the clergy licensed in, and three lay delegates to the synod, of the bishop’s diocese.
b. A diocesan bishop who has been accused by any person of committing an oﬀence, but against whom no
charge has been filed, may, together with two other bishops of the Province, file with the Metropolitan a
request that the accusation be investigated, whereupon a charge alleging that the diocesan bishop has
committed an oﬀence shall be deemed to have been filed.
c. If the diocesan bishop against whom a charge is filed or is deemed to have been filed does not waive the
appointment of a Committee of Inquiry, the Metropolitan shall appoint three persons (at least one of whom
shall be a judge of a court of record of the Province of Ontario or a barrister or solicitor of at least ten years'
standing at the bar of the Province of Ontario, and none of whom shall subsequently be assessors or members
of the Court which may be convened to deal with such charge) as a Committee of Inquiry to determine
whether there is suﬃcient evidence to warrant a trial of the charge.
d. If the Committee of Inquiry determines that a trial is not warranted, the Metropolitan shall dismiss the charge.
e. Subject to subsection (f), if the diocesan bishop waives the appointment of a Committee of Inquiry, or if the
Committee of Inquiry determines that a trial is warranted, the Metropolitan may
i. exercise the initial jurisdiction conferred upon the Metropolitan by section three of Canon XVIII, or
ii. refer to the Court the determination of whether an ecclesiastical oﬀence has been committed or the
determination of a penalty.
f. Where the diocesan bishop against whom a charge is filed or is deemed to have been filed is the Metropolitan,
if the Metropolitan waives the appointment of a Committee of Inquiry and determines that a trial is warranted,
the diocesan bishop with whom the charge or request was filed shall refer to the Court the determination of
whether an ecclesiastical oﬀence has been committed or the determination of a penalty.
g. When exercising initial jurisdiction, the Metropolitan shall
i) be advised by assessors, and
ii) follow the same rules and procedure as would be followed by the Court including the principles and
general procedures prescribed by Part five of Canon XVIII.
h. During the period while the Committee of Inquiry or the Court is in session, the accused person may withdraw
from the exercise of his or her oﬃce or be inhibited therefrom.
7. Review of Initial Jurisdiction:
A bishop who has been convicted of an oﬀence by the Metropolitan or a diocesan bishop in the exercise of initial
jurisdiction, or the Executive Council of the diocese in which the convicted bishop holds oﬃce or resides, may
invoke the jurisdiction of the Court to review the conviction or the penalty imposed, by filing with the Metropolitan
within thirty days of the conviction or imposition of penalty a written request for such review.
8. Appeals:
a. Any party to a proceeding before a diocesan court may appeal.
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b. An appellant shall give written notice of appeal from a judgment or order of a diocesan court or of the
president thereof within thirty (3) days from the date such judgment or order is pronounced. The notice shall
be given to such persons and in such manner as are prescribed by the rules of the Court.
c. The Court may, on motion, dismiss an appeal that is frivolous or vexations or otherwise an obvious abuse of
the process of the Court.
9. Sittings:
The Court may sit in any diocese in the Province at such time and place as the President of the Court directs.
10. Judgment:
a. The Court shall hear and dispose of a matter within one year from the date on which the Metropolitan appoints
the members of the Court.
b. Before delivering judgment on an issue involving a question of doctrine the Court shall refer the question to
the Provincial House of Bishops, and shall consider the opinions of the bishops who reply within two months
after the question is referred to them.
c. Subject to any right of appeal conferred by the Canons of the General Synod, the judgment of the Court is final
and conclusive in respect of all matters in question in the proceeding.
11. Rules:
a. The Executive Council of Provincial Synod may make rules with respect to the appointment and duties of
oﬃcers of the Court, the practice and procedure of the Court including the procedure for the hearing of
interlocutory matters, and all other matters necessary to give eﬀect to the provisions of this Canon.
b. Until such rules have been made the Rules of The Supreme Court of Appeal for The Anglican Church of Canada
shall be followed to the extent that they are applicable.

Canon VI - Enactments of the General Synod
This Provincial Synod accepts all the enactments of the General Synod insofar as they have application to the
Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario.

Canon VII - A Canon To Provide for the Administration of the Diocese of Moosonee
as a Mission Area of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario
1. In this Canon,
“Diocese” means the Diocese of Moosonee;
“Metropolitan” means the Metropolitan or Acting Metropolitan of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario.
“Synod” means the Synod of the Diocese’
“Provincial Synod” means the Provincial Synod of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario.
2. The Diocese is a Mission Area of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario while this Canon is in force.
3.
3.1. Notwithstanding anything in any Canon of the Synod the Metropolitan shall be the Bishop of the Diocese from
the date this Canon comes into force until the date it expires.
3.2.The Metropolitan shall exercise all spiritual, temporal, disciplinary and judicial authority of the Bishop of the
Diocese.
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3.3.The Metropolitan may authorize other bishops to perform Episcopal liturgical functions in the Diocese
including the ordination of deacons and priests, confirmation, the consecration of churches, chapels and
church-yards and the blessing of oil.
3.4.The Metropolitan may appoint one or more Administrators for the Diocese or for areas of the Diocese and
authorize them to act as deputies for the Metropolitan in temporal matters and to carry out duties and
responsibilities in such matters. The Metropolitan may vary from time to time the terms of the powers
delegated to the Administrator or Administrators.
3.5.Administrators are responsible to, and shall report to, the Metropolitan. Administrators serve at the pleasure of
the Metropolitan.
4.
4.1. The Canon comes into force on the date the Right Reverend Thomas A. Corston ceases to hold the oﬃce of
Bishop of the Diocese.
4.2.When the Metropolitan and the Executive Council of the Synod jointly determine that the Diocese should
cease to be a Mission Area and be restored to its former status the Metropolitan shall call such meetings of the
Executive Council and of the Synod, as are required by Canon 13, to elect a diocesan bishop in accordance with
that Canon.
4.3.This Canon expires on the date the person elected by the Synod is installed as Bishop of the Diocese.
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Section II - Synod Membership
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The Members of the 2018 Synod
Metropolitan
Provincial Chancellor
Prolocutor
Executive Officer
Treasurer

The Most Rev. Colin Johnson
Jean Bedard, Q.C.
Laura Walton
The Ven. Canon Dr. Harry Huskins
Din Oosterbaan

Diocese of Algoma
Bishop
Chancellor
Clergical

Lay

Youth

The Rt. Rev. Anne Germond
Garth O’Neill
The Rev. Beth Hewson
The Ven. Marie Loewen
The Rev. Dr. Derek Neal
The Ven. Roberta Wilson-Garrett
Garry Barker
Ann Camber
Barb Ingram
Chantal Rozon
Jakob Devries

Diocese of Huron
Bishop
Chancellor
Clergical

Lay

Youth

The Rt. Reverend Linda Nicholls
Canon James Ferguson
The Ven. Dr. Timothy Dobbin
The Very Rev. Paul Millward
The Rev. Meghan Nicholls
The Ven. Tanya Phibbs
David Embury
Canon Paul Rathbone
Paul Townshend
Pamela Walters
Adriana Cronin

Diocese of Moosonee
Assistant Bishop
Chancellor
Clergical

The Rt. Rev. Thomas Corston
Bryan Finlay Q.C.
The Ven. Canon Larry Armstrong
The Rev. Catherine Murkin
The Rev. Canon Norm Wesley
The Rev. George Westgate
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Lay

Rita Jonah McLeod
Marjorie Mark
Kim Skidmore
Marshall Thompson

Youth
Diocese of Niagara
Bishop
Chancellor
Clergical

Lay

Youth

The Rt. Reverend Susan Bell
Greg Tweney
The Ven. Dr. David Anderson
The Ven. Valerie Kerr
The Rev. Canon Dr. Michael Mondloch
The Very Rev. Peter Wall
Neil Bell
Andrew Clinkard
Patricia Davis
Susan Little
Siobhan Bennett

Diocese of Ontario
Bishop
Chancellor
Clergical

Lay

The Rt. Rev. Michael Oulton
Roy B. Conacher Q.C.
The Ven. Nancy McLeod
The Rev. Patricia Miller
The Rev. Canon Michael Read
The Ven. Wayne Varley
Harry Cleghorn
Joyce Eggleston
Ken Healy
Haroldine Neil-Burchert

Youth
Diocese of Ottawa
Bishop
Chancellor
Clergical

The Rt. Reverend John Chapman
Robin MacKay
The Rev. Canon Laurette Glasgow
The Ven. Brian Kauk
The Ven. Kathryn Otley
The Ven. David Selzer
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Lay

Youth

Irene Barbeau
Kim Chadsey
Ron Chaplin
Michael Perkin
Lily Frampton

Diocese of Toronto
Diocesan Bishop
Bishop Co-Adjutor
Bishops

Chancellor
Clergical

Lay

Youth

The Most Rev. Colin Johnson
The Very Rev. Reverend Andrew Asbil
The Rt. Reverend Jenny Andison
The Rt. Reverend Peter Fenty
The Rt. Reverend Riscylla Shaw
The Rt. Reverend Kevin Robertson
Canon Clare Burns
The Rev. Canon Doug Graydon
The Rev. Canon David Harrison
The Rev. Karen Hatch
The Rev. Jeﬀery Potter
Lawrence (Larry) Barker
Jean Glionna, ODT
Susan Schuschu, ODT
Laura Walton (Prolocutor of the Synod)
Lyds Keesmatt-Walsh

Provincial Consultants (not voting members of the Synod):
Provincial Consultant on Cemetery and Bereavement Matters – The Rev. Dan Graves
Provincial Consultant on Chaplaincy Matters – The Rev. Canon Douglas Graydon
Provincial Consultant on Heritage Matters – The Rev. Dr. Mary-Catherine Garden
Provincial Consultant on Immigration Matters – The Rev. Canon Laurette Glasgow
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Call for the Formation of the Executive Council
October 09 - 12, 2018
The Executive Council
The Executive Council carries out the work of the Provincial Synod when the Synod itself is not in session.
Composition
The Executive Council is made up as follows:
1. the Metropolitan;
2. the Prolocutor
3. a bishop from each diocese, selected as set out below;
4. one clerical and one lay member from each diocese, selected as set out below;
5. a youth member, selected as set out below;
6. the Lay Secretary
7. the Clerical Secretary
8. the Chancellor of the Provincial Synod;
9. the Executive Oﬃcer of the Provincial Synod;
10. the Treasurer of the Provincial Synod
Selection of Certain Members of the Executive Council
In dioceses where there is one or more suﬀragan bishop, the episcopal member of the Executive Council for the
diocese is chosen from amongst all the bishops of the diocese, by themselves. In dioceses where there is no suﬀragan
bishop, the diocesan bishop is automatically a member of the Executive Council.
Each diocese will select one clerical and one lay delegate of the diocese to become a member of the Executive Council.
The manner of selection is to be determined by each diocese. The selection will be made in diocesan groups on the
morning of Friday, October 12, 2018.
The youth member of Council will be chosen from among the youth delegates by the youth themselves on the
morning of Friday, October 12, 2018.
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Section III - Reports
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Acts of the Provincial Executive Council, 2015 - 2018
The Provincial Executive Council functions between sessions of the Provincial Synod to carry on its work, but without
the Synod’s legislative power to enact Canons or amend the Constitution. The following list is of substantive actions
(not including procedural motions) taken by the Council:
• Established the Priorities for the Provincial Synod’s work after reviewing the discussion of this at the 2015 Synod
session:
1. Homelessness and Housing
2. Eldercare
3. The Truth and Reconciliation Commission’s Calls to Action and the work of the Ontario Provincial
Commission on Theological Education (OPCOTE).
• The Discussion Groups were formed, consisting of the members of the Council, to further consider these
Priorities.
• The Council adopted a policy on Homeliness and Aﬀordable Housing and authorized the use of materials for the
June 2018 provincial election.
• In conformity with Canon V 2 (g) nominees presented by the dioceses were confirmed as the members of the
Provincial Court of Appeal
• Adopted the 2015 financial statements
• Adopted the 2016 budget
• Adopted the 2016 financial statements
• Adopted the 2017 budget
• Adopted the 2017 financial statements
• Adopted the 2018 budget
• Appointed auditors as required for the triennium.
• Received reports from, and oversaw the work or the Province’s involvement in the Commission on
Theological Education, the Advisory Commission on Postulants for Ordination, the Secretariat for
Government Relations, discussions with the Ontario College of Psychotherapists, the Ontario Human Rights
Commission, and the Bereavement Authority of Ontario.
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Report of the Executive Oﬃcer
The Provincial Synod exists to support the work of our dioceses and the parishes and ministries within them, and the
Metropolitan, and the Provincial House of Bishops. These are some of the fundamental principles on which we try to
base our work:
• the Province should only take the lead in a task when it is best done at this level; that is, when it does not make
sense to have each diocese duplicating the work, and it is not a matter best handled at the national level.
Examples of this are OPCOTE, the Secretariat for Government Relations, and our new initiative that involves
bringing the senior staﬀ of our diocesan oﬃces together to consult with experts about diﬃcult problems they are
dealing with being faced by all our dioceses.
• the tasks undertaken at the Provincial level should be limited in number and designated as priorities by the
Synod or the Executive Council. These priorities should be clearly thought out as part of the Province’s overall
strategy for its work. They should only be undertaken when the resources needed to do the task well are
available, and when there is a reasonable prospect of success, and the success or failure of these initiatives
should be regularly measured and changes made where these will bring more eﬀective results.
• agencies functioning at the Provincial level should not continue to exist just because they have the past, but
should have clear mandates and well-thought out tasks. They should be time-limited. These mandates will be
reviewed and evaluated on a regular basis, at which time they may be ended, or renewed, in which case the
terms of the mandates may be refined to meet changing circumstances or needs.
• a guiding principle is the colloquialism “keep it cheap and keep it eﬀective”. Whenever possible we use
volunteers for our tasks and keep travel and related expenses to a minimum.
Our last two Provincial Synod sessions in 2012 and 2015 dealt, in detail, with the reorganization of the Moosonee
Diocese. This work seems to have been exceptionally successful. In conformity with the Provincial and Moosonee
diocesan Canons this Synod will elect a new Metropolitans (Archbishop) for the Province and, at the same time, elect a
new Bishop of Moosonee (who will be the same person) on behalf of the Moosonee diocesan Synod.
The last two Synod sessions also directed that there be an emphasis on finding ways that our dioceses can find greater
eﬃciencies by cooperating together on some of their work and that the Provincial Synod facilitate these discussions.
The Synod members also directed that ways be explored to provide greater support for the staﬀ of our diocesan
oﬃces where they find themselves dealing with common problems.
This ongoing study and work has resulted in two major developments.
For many years the Provincial Council and House of Bishops have met in conjunction with each other each spring and
fall. To this has now been added time in which the Bishops can meet with the Executive Oﬃcers of the dioceses and
the Executive Oﬃcers then meet with other senior staﬀ from the diocesan oﬃces in a Consultation called,
unsurprisingly, the diocesan Senior Staﬀ Consultation. This has proven very helpful to coordinating work among the
dioceses and also allow these senior staﬀ to come together in one room to meet with and be briefed by experts on the
legal, human resources, financial, property, congregational development and other matters that they deal with.
The Senior Staﬀ Consultation and the Executive Oﬃcers were asked by the Council and the Bishops to consider the
best way forward in bringing about further beneficial collaboration among our dioceses. This has resulted in the Ten
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Year Plan and we will be briefed on this during the Synod session by Archdeacons Tanya Phibbs (Huron) and David
Selzer (Ottawa).
The expansion of this work at the Provincial level, and a quite steep rise in the cost of hotel rooms in Toronto, have had
an impact on our Provincial budget that the Synod will need to deal with. We have not increased the yearly
apportionments that our dioceses are asked to contribute towards the Provincial budget since 2012. Given the rate of
inflation, this has meant an eﬀective cut in our actual revenue of a little more than 15%. We have been able to deal
with this my being very careful about the way we spend our money. The limit to which we can do this, however, has
been reached in the draft budget for 2019 being presented to this Synod session.
This budget is balanced by bringing in money from our reserves along with an apportionment increase of 15%. This
increase sounds quite dramatic but, given the relatively small size of the Provincial budget, the actual dollar increases
for each diocese may not seem all that large.
This Synod session will need to discuss both our Priorities going forward and this draft budget. After listening
carefully to this discussion, the members of our new Provincial Council will actually set these Priorities and consider
the budget when they meet for their first Council session in the spring of 2019.

- Harry Huskins
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Secretariat for Government Relations
The Church in the Province pursues discussions with government, which is an intrinsic part of our mandate for social
advocacy and the betterment of the community, on three levels. The first is through partnerships with other
denominations and non-governmental organizations such as ISARC (the InterFaith Social Assistance Reform
Coalition); the second is through the Executive Oﬃcers and our Provincial Representatives who have been given
responsibility for specific areas such as Heritage and Chaplaincy; and the third through our Secretariat for Government
Relations. This allows us a flexibility which we would not otherwise have in dealing with issues.
The Secretariat exists to advise the Metropolitan, the House of Bishops, and the Provincial Synod on matters relating to
the Ontario provincial government. It also keeps the Church informed of governmental matters and issues of emerging
importance, when asked to its members advocate the policy positions taken by the Synod and the House with their
political Parties, and the Secretariat members assist Provincial Synod agencies and representatives in their work. The
Secretariat members maintain both formal and informal contacts with the three political Parties to enable this to
happen.
The Secretariat was originally established under Article Fourteen of our Constitution, but this has since been amended
(2001) so that the Secretariat is now numbered among the other Commissions and Committees of our Provincial
Synod, though it continues to be directly responsible to the Metropolitan. This original constitutional Mandate
provided that:
There shall be attached directly to the oﬃce of the Metropolitan a Secretariat for Government Relations for
the following purposes:
i. To make representations on behalf of the Provincial Synod to government
ii. To keep the Provincial Synod informed about government action of concern to the Church in the
Province
iii. To liaise with the Diocese of Keewatin in relation to the above matters
iv. Taxation
Membership on the Secretariat shall be determined by the Executive Council in consultation with the
Metropolitan.
The Secretariat has members who act as liaison for each of the three political Parties at Queen’s Park. These are its
Chair, Donna Cansfield (Liberal Party), Terence Young (Progressive Conservative Party) and David Krause with the New
Democratic Party.
The traditional Anglican position in regard to relationships with civil government was set out by William Temple,
Archbishop of Canterbury:
This is the function of the Church in relation to public life. Its main work now, as always must be the
conversion and sanctification of individuals. On that everything depends; if that goes, all goes. But the
Church must also have its direct impact upon the ordered life of the community - its politics, industry, its
social life, thought and order, and all the rest.
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It will not pretend to expert knowledge, or oﬀer to settle technical disputes. But it will constantly aﬃrm the
spiritual principles which are involved in any department of public life, and it will try to bring together in
mutual good will those who are in variance, that together they may find the solution to their problem.
Above all the Church will perpetually insist that no question touching human life is ever merely secular,
merely economic, or merely material. All that touches human life is fundamentally spiritual, and can only be
rightly settled under the guidance of the Holy Spirit.
Essays in Christian Politics, 1927
Our advocacy work over the last year has focused primarily on our Homelessness and Housing Policy. At our spring
Provincial Council meeting we had the Minister Responsible and the Critics from the Progressive Conservative and New
Democratic Parties attend. They presented their own response to our policy position and answered questions from the
Council members.
With the coming into oﬃce of the new Ford government we are presently building new relationships with Members
from all three Parties and renewing old relationships. As the policy direction of this new government becomes clearer
we will measure its declared policy intentions against our own positions and engage with them in line with this.
This Provincial Synod session will consider this overall situation in our government relations work and the new
Provincial Council will set our Priorities at its first meeting in the spring of 2019. The Secretariat Members, and those
working with them, will then pursue the implementation of these Priorities at Queen’s Park and within our own
Church.

- Harry Huskins, Executive Oﬃcer
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Working Together - The Ten Year Plan
2019 - 2029
In June of 2013, a Provincial Consultation on Shared Ministry brought together the diocesan Bishops and the senior
diocesan oﬃce staﬀ from our seven dioceses to discuss areas for shared ministry. Several areas were flagged for
further study to determine if we could work more eﬃciently and eﬀectively together than apart. Since that meeting,
diocesan senior staﬀ from throughout the Province have met together twice yearly. These consultations have covered
a wide range of topics including insurance, cemeteries, human resources matters, legal concerns, clergy training and
reviews and more. For some discussions, experts in the field have been brought in to share their knowledge; other
discussion focused on best practices among the gathered staﬀ. All the participants agree that these meetings are a
valuable use of our time and are deeply appreciative of the Ecclesiastical Province for providing the resources which
make this possible. We are also aware that it is time to move past discussion into concrete ways in which we can work
together in areas where doing so would be more eﬃcient and eﬀective than working separately. The Provincial House
of Bishops has held similar discussions at their semi-annual meetings and have requested that the senior staﬀ develop
a 10 year plan whose goal is a much higher level of diocesan collaboration and inter-dependence than currently exists.
In March 2018, the House of Bishops and the Executive Archdeacons/Oﬃcers of the dioceses met to discuss next steps.
Each diocesan bishop committed his or her diocese to being part of a plan to work more closely together as a
province. They also agreed to that each, in their own diocese, would consider how to commit the necessary resources
to study, plan and implement new organizational structures which may emerge. The meeting in June 2013 yielded
several ideas, most of which have not been followed up on, most likely due to lack of time and resources rather than
opposition to the ideas.
A motion will be brought before the delegates at Provincial Synod 2019 to recommend that the dioceses agree to
collaborate more fully than we do currently. While an individual diocese may be able to make a case for acting alone
in certain areas this would hopefully become the exception rather than the norm. The list of areas where collaboration
could be helpful includes but is not limited to: Safe Church, Clergy Continuing Education, Financial Management, areas
governed by Ontario Governmental laws and regulations (such as AODA, cemeteries, Employment Standards; Health
and Safety and Harassment Policies), Volunteer Training and Management, Payroll and Benefits, Human Resources,
Property Development and Archives. If the motion is passed by the Provincial Synod, over the next triennium an
overall plan would be developed laying out areas of collaboration, defining goals in each area and setting benchmarks
for working toward the goals. Two to three areas would be chosen to examine in this triennium in consultation with
the House of Bishops. Regular progress reports would be made to Provincial Synod Council as well as to individual
Diocesan Councils during the triennium and to Provincial Synod in 2022.
The senior staﬀ consultations over the past 6 years have shown both the depth of talents and abilities available in our
dioceses as well as a shared deep love for the Church. Working more closely together will allow for improved
stewardship of our talents, abilities and resources allowing us to better meet the organizational needs of the church in
our ecclesiastical province. This in turn will allow each diocese to concentrate more fully on living out our call to be a
Hopeful Church in Changing Times.

- The Venerable Tanya Phibbs
- The Venerable David Selzer
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Ontario Provincial Commission on Theological Education (OPCOTE)
The Commission on Theological Education’s triennium began with Bishop Stephen Andrews as its chair. In 2016,
Bishop Andrews resigned as Algoma’s Diocesan Bishop to become the Principal of Wycliﬀe College. Archbishop
Johnson then asked Bishop John Chapman to succeed Bishop Andrews as the Commissions chair and Bishop
Chapman agreed to accept this appointment.
The Commission was created in 1995 and generally meets twice a year, spring and fall, with the meetings alternating
between Trinity and Wycliﬀe Colleges in Toronto. The Commission is made up of members representing the four
Colleges (programmes) in the Province involved in Anglican theological education and representatives of each of the
seven dioceses who are knowledgeable about the theological needs and postulancy processes in their diocese.
The Colleges represented on the Commission are Canterbury, Renison, the Anglican Studies Program at St. Paul
University, Thorneloe, Trinity, and Wycliﬀe.
In addition, to aid in theological education in the Province, our dioceses contribute about $140,000 a year to the
OPOCTE General Fund. This money is then distributed among the Colleges according to a formula agreed on by the
Commission members.
The Commission’s Mandate is to:
a. promote Anglican theological education, including post graduate studies;
b. foster cooperation and mutual accountability among and between dioceses and theological institutions;
c. encourage identification and sharing of resources in the theological institutions and the dioceses to meet
specific and on-going needs for theological education;
d. identity and coordinate research resources, available through the theological institutions and dioceses,
required to investigate and address issues of common concern;
e. assess the financial needs of the colleges and seek the financial support of the Church in the Province for
them;
f. assess the financial needs of students and seek the financial support of the Church in the Province for them;
g. monitor individual and total diocesan funding of theological education;
h. provide continuing annual financial support to the colleges, distinct from direct student assistance, through
the General Fund;
i. encourage provincial bishops to direct students preparing for ordination to provincial Anglican institutions of
theological education;
j. seek out opportunities to recognize theological education and the role of the theological institutions;
k. monitor, encourage and report on discussions regarding the state of theological education in the Province,
including curriculum and spiritual formation;
l. monitor theological education initiatives and modes of delivery, including theological education by
extension, distance education, diocesan, provincial or national programmes and aboriginal and multi-ethnic
initiatives;
m. encourage periodic meetings of heads of colleges in Ontario, directors of field education, faculty, bishops,
along with other diocesan personnel involved in theological training and ordination preparation;
n. work for ecumenical cooperation between Anglican theological colleges and other theological education
institutions; and
o. engage in ecumenical discussion with respect to provincial government funding of theological education.
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OPCOTE presented a proposal to the 2015 Provincial Synod session that a new video resource be produced “to whet
appetites for theological education amongst lay leaders, candidates for ordination and ordained ministers across the
Province.”
The new initiative was authorized by the Provincial Council with an allocation of funding of $21,000 that was
supplemented by addition contributions from our dioceses. A video entitled Ask Bigger Questions was produced, with
the assistance of the Diocese of Niagara, along with a discussion guide. Subsequently, a decision was made to
recommend that there be five further segments of the Project produced.
The purpose of the video Project: To develop a social media set of resources to invite people into the enterprise of
theological education. There has been a strong response to raising the money to pay for the Project. By the end of the
year there will be a dissemination plan in place in which the delivery system will be primarily digital. In addition,
discussion is ongoing regarding a Provincially-sponsored recruitment fair.
In the spirit of ongoing research, in 2017 OPCOTE conducted a survey of the clergy in the Province to better understand
grassroots perspectives about theological education and the degree of awareness of the current oﬀerings provided by
the Anglican and Lutheran schools and programmes in Ontario. The results are currently being studied and hopefully
will assist in shaping future work in theological education.
One of the most important tasks currently being undertaken by the Commission includes a full and comprehensive
response to the TRC’s Calls for Action, and particularly numbers 59 and 60, which is one of the three Priorities
designated for this Triennium. The Provincial Council formed a Discussion Group of some of its members to work on
this Priority and these are on-going discussions about how this might best be done.
Most recently, consideration was given as to whether something could be developed at the provincial Church level in
which the Colleges and Dioceses would collaborate on the Calls for Action which might involve transferrable credits
between the Colleges. This conversation is ongoing between the Schools and OPCOTE.
As well, over the next couple of months, each school or programme is expected to report to OPCOTE regarding their
current actions in relation to the TRC’s I # 59 and 60. Some dioceses have already responded while OPCOTE waited
to hear from others. While this action is ongoing, a small group within OPCOTE including, the Rev. Lisa Brant Francis,
Canon Mary Conliﬀe, Professor Kevin Flynn, and Bishop John Chapman is tasked with the following:
• To collect information regarding what each Diocese and School/Programme is doing in relation to Theological
Education and the preparation of people for ministry,
• To consider a Provincial response which could possibly include a mandatory Provincial programme for ordinands
and “new” clergy to ensure:
• Anti-racism Training,
• An understanding of the history of colonization,
• All matters related to the Residential Schools,
• Other matters related to Calls to Action #59 and 60
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At the April 2018 meeting, the Commission members heard a report from Larry Armstrong on the outstanding success
of the Moosonee School for Ministry and the number of new ordinands that have been called. The Spirit has been lively
indeed at the Moosonee School.
However, the cost is enormous. The current financial outlay for The Moosonee School is approximately $65,000.
While a School for Ministry is needed every two to three years, the Moosonee diocese does not have the money to
meet this need.
Discussion followed about how this funding might be generated. Bishop Chapman suggested that already budgeted,
but unexpended, continuing education funds in the individual dioceses could be pooled to create a provincial fund for
this purpose. This would provide the needed funding for Moosonee without increasing the actual expenditures within
the individual diocesan budgets.
Matters that Synod may wish to discuss:
1. Recruitment Fair
2. Expending surplus continuing education funds to support The Moosonee School for Ministry
3. Our ongoing response to the TRC (Calls for Action #59 & 60) .

- Bishop John H. Chapman , Chair
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Section IV - Resolutions
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Omnibus Motion Organizing the Synod
Notice is given that it is the intention that the following Motions be moved at the opening of the Synod session
(with the names of the movers and seconders, and of those being proposed for election being presented in full at
that time)

Motion One: Assessors
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Moved that:
Pursuant to Article 8 (b) of the Constitution, the following be elected as assessors: _______________________

Motion Two: Honorary Secretaries
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Moved that:
That ________ be elected as Honorary Lay Secretary, and ________ be elected as Honorary Clerical Secretary.

Motion Three: Omnibus Motion
Moved by:
Seconded by:
Moved that:
1. The appointment of committees be confirmed.
2. The regrets of absences, greetings, and Courtesies of Synod and of the Floor be extended or received, as the
case may be.
3. The Report on Credentials in regard to the number of Episcopal, Clerical, and Lay delegates be regarded as
received, and that the Chair, as soon as may be practicable, shall announce the result of such scrutiny.
4. The agenda be adopted.
5. The minutes of the Thirty-forth Session of Synod, having taken place in Toronto, Ontario, 2015, be adopted.
6. The Reports and Motions printed or posted on the web as part of the Convening Circular, additional Reports,
and additional non-canonical motions be received.
7. The actions of the Provincial Executive Council be approved.
Notice is given that it is the intention that the following Motions in relation of the Synod Finances be moved during
the Synod session (with the names of the movers and seconders presented in full at that time)

In Regard to the 2019 Budget
Moved by:
Seconded by:
That the Preliminary Budget for 2019 be approved.
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In Regard to the Financial Review Statements
Moved by:
Seconded by:
That the financial review statements be accepted.

The Carrying Out of the Financial Review
Moved by:
Seconded by:
That the firm of Joe Ruscio Professional Corporation be appointed to conduct the Financial Review.
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Section V - Financial Statements and Treasurer’s Report
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Treasurer’s Report
June 26, 2018
The Financial Statements for December 31st, 2017, are attached hereto and they provide full financial disclosure of the
Synod’s finances since our last Synod in October 2015.
The Executive Council members were provided, at the Spring meetings, with full copies of the last three annual
Reports and they have been formally adopted by the Council on your behalf.
A copy of the Preliminary Budget for the year 2019 is appended hereto and will require the approval of the Synod. It
should be noted that for the past seven years there has been no increase in the Provincial Assessments to the
dioceses.
However, during the latter part of 2017 there has been a very substantial increase in hotel accommodation rates as well
as an imposition of municipal levies on room rates. As a result this Provincial Synod will be faced with a very
substantial increase in the cost of accommodation eﬀective immediately.
Several matters of financial concern were dealt with by your Executive Council since the last Synod and are reported
by the Executive Oﬃcer in his Report.

- Din Oosterbaan, Provincial Treasurer
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Financial Statements
ANGLICAN CHURCH OF CANADA
THE PROVINCIAL SYNOD OF ONTARIO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Operations and Fund Balance
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements
REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT
229 Great Northern Road Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6B 4Z2
P: 705-949-1221 / F: 705-949-1225
www.jrpc.ca
To the Board of Anglican Church of Canada, The Provincial Synod of Ontario
We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Anglican Church of Canada, The Provincial Synod of
Ontario that comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2017, and the statements of operations, fund balances and
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Practitioner's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on our review. We
conducted our review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements, which
require us to comply with relevant ethical requirements.
A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements is
a limited assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of
management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, and evaluates the
evidence obtained.
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The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature from, those performed in
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion on these financial statements.
Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial statements do
not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Anglican Church of Canada, The Provincial Synod of
Ontario as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.
Chartered Professional Accountant, Chartered Accountant Professional Corporation
Authorized to practice public accounting by The Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario
Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario February 16, 2018
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ASSETS
Cash $
Receivables
Prepaids
$

2017
251,370
23,612
2,270
277,252

$
$

2016
267,131
6,453
149
273,733

LIABILITIES AND UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

2017
$132,420
32,420
144,832
$277,252

2016
$130,370
130,370
143,363
$273,733

Interest
Donations
Other contributions
Harmonized sales tax and other
Total operations

2017
$45,400
26,000
20,800
18,800
9,400
8,500
2,000
130,900
2,089
300
2,500
6,812
142,601

2016
$45,400
26,000
20,800
18,800
9,400
8,500
2,000
130,900
2,286
300
9,050
5,303
147,839

Theological Education Grants: Contributions
Toronto
Niagara
Ottawa
Ontario
Algoma
Moosonee
Total Theological Education Grants
Total revenue

2017
61,250
17,200
16,250
18,000
16,050
3,600
132,350
274,951

2016
59,900
16,700
15,900
16,700
15,700
3,500
128,400
276,239

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
Revenue:
Operations:
Assessments
Toronto
Huron
Niagara
Ottawa
Ontario
Algoma
Moosonee
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Expenses:
Operations:
Administration
Executive Council
Program
House of Bishops
Insurance
Other expenses

Theological Education Grants:
Ontario Prov Commission on Th. Education
Total expenses
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Unrestricted fund balance, beginning of year
Unrestricted fund balance, end of year
Cash flows from operating activities:

2017
89,824
20,898
14,000
8,386
3,024
5,000
141,132

2016
83,523
21,058
14,000
4,257
2,916
125,754

132,350
273,482
1,469
143,363
$144,832

128,400
254,154
22,085
121,278
$143,363

2017

2916

Excess of revenues over expenditures
Increase (decrease) from accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) from prepaids
Increase (decrease) from accounts payable
Increase (decrease) from deferred revenue

$ 1,469
(17,159)
(2,121)
2,050
(15,761)

$ 22,085
7
(149)
4,070
26,013

Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

267,131
$251,370

241,118
$267,131

Notes to the Financial Statements
The Provincial Synod of Ontario (the "Synod") is incorporated under a special Act of the Provincial Legislature as "The
Provincial Synod of the Church of England in Canada for the Province of Ontario". The members of the Provincial
Synod are seven Anglican Dioceses located in the Province of Ontario with two Dioceses also operating in the Province
of Quebec. The Synod meets every three years to elect an Executive to oversee the work of the Synod during each
three-year period.
The Synod conducts transactions with its member dioceses. The Synod's revenue includes assessments for operations
and contributions towards Theological Education Grants.
The Synod is a registered charity and is exempt from income taxes.
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations ("ASFNPO") and include the following significant accounting policies:
Revenue recognition and fund accounting
The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for not-for-profit organizations.
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Revenues from assessments and for Theological Education Grants are recognized in the fiscal year to which they apply.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the related expense is incurred. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount can be reasonably estimated and
collections is reasonably assured.
Capital assets
The Synod expenses capital assets in the year the expenditure was incurred. Capital assets of $nil (2016 - $nil) were
expensed in the year.
Contributed services
Volunteers contributed many hours during the year to assist the Synod in carrying out its service delivery. Because of
the diﬃculty of determining their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.
Financial instruments
The Synod's financial instruments comprise of cash, receivable and payables.
Financial assets or liabilities obtained in arm's length transactions are initially measured at their fair value and financial
assets or liabilities obtained in related party transactions are measured at their exchange amount. The Synod
subsequently measures all of its financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost.
2.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Synod's financial instruments consists of cash, receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Unless
otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Synod is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit
risk arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of the financial instruments approximates their carrying
value, unless otherwise noted.
3.

CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Synod defines its capital as its fund balances. The Synod is not subject to external restrictions on its fund balances.
The Synod's objective when managing its capital is to hold suﬃcient net assets to provide liquidity for the Synod's
ongoing operations.
4.

FINANCIAL RISKS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISK

a. Market risk:
The Synod's investments in GIC's exposed the Synod to price risks as those investments were subject to price
changes in the open market. The GIC investments matured in the current year.
b. Credit risk:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial
loss. The Synod deals with creditworthy counterparties to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Synod performs continuous evaluation of its accounts receivable and records an allowance for impairment. No
individual account is significant to the Synod.
c. Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Synod will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis or at a reasonable
cost. The Synod manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating requirements. The Synod prepares budget
and cash forecasts to ensure it has suﬃcient funds to fulfill its obligations. There has been no change to the risk
exposures from 2016.
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d. Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. In 2016, the Synod was previously exposed to interest rate risk on its floating
interest rate financial instruments which matured in 2017 and have not been reinvested.
e. Concentration of risk:
The Synod relies on a significant amount of its funding from various sources. A decline in economic conditions or
other adverse conditions could lead to reduced revenue and ability to continue with ongoing operations.
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Preliminary 2019 Budget
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Section VI - Provincial Policy Statements
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Policy on Homelessness and Housing
And the Lord said,
is not this the Fast that I choose for you;
to loose the bonds of injustice, to undo the thongs of the yoke.
Is it not to share you break with the hungry,
And bring the homeless poor into your house.
Isaiah 58 6 – 8
The Anglican Church has identified the plight of the homeless and the diﬃculties being encountered by the poor
seeking reasonable housing at an aﬀordable cost as one of the major social problems facing the Province.
Anglicans across Ontario wish to work in partnership with the provincial government to develop and implement a
comprehensive plan to increase and maintain the available stock of aﬀordable housing.
Housing people makes sound economic sense as homelessness and precarious housing have significant fiscal impacts
in the increased costs imposed on health care, social services and the justice system. Equally important are the human
costs of homelessness such as the loss of dignity, isolation and death. Certain populations experience
disproportionately high levels of inadequate housing, including Indigenous and racialized communities, newcomers to
Canada, large families, seniors, youth, and people living with physical disabilities and mental illness or addictions, and
displaced workers.
Anglicans throughout Ontario have been working for many years to address the Housing Crisis in a variety of ways.
Many are on the front line of developing innovative aﬀordable housing solutions, either through direct financial
support or through the provision of surplus property for development. They do this work in partnership with all levels
of government, the private sector, developers, local citizens and grass roots coalitions.
Working with our people of all faith, with private and business partners, Anglicans in Ontario regularly mobilize to
respond to immediate needs through invaluable support services for those experiencing temporary or chronic
homelessness or precarious housing, by hosting Out of the Cold programs, managing emergency shelters and drop-in
programs, and providing community spaces for housing support workers to meet with clients. Local clergy provide
pastoral and spiritual support.
The Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario of the Anglican Church wants to partner with the provincial government and
continue to build upon, enhance, and adjust what is already well-articulated and working at a provincial level including
the Investment in Aﬀordable Housing program, the Ontario Poverty Reduction Strategy, a municipal level such as the
10-year Plans to End Homelessness and now at the Federal level with the new National Housing Strategy.
In addition we urge the provincial government to:
Develop and implement a comprehensive plan to increase and maintain the available stock of suitable aﬀordable
housing in Ontario through adequate, predictable, sustainable and long-term funding.
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Ensure that those in need can access supports best suited to their circumstances. This should include both on and oﬀ
site supports for individuals, as well as a strong network of community-based supports that can help break isolation,
develop skills, and provide a basis for civic engagement, healing, and recovery.
Provide portable housing benefits to low-income households, allowing them to avoid falling into homelessness while
simultaneously relieving pressure on social housing infrastructure.
Collaborate with federal and municipal programs to create opportunities for the private sector to be involved in the
development of aﬀordable housing, including through tax exemptions, inclusionary zoning, and development fee
waivers.
Work to ensure that emergency shelters are funded adequately and equipped appropriately for the people served in
their communities.
Members of the Church are bound to take an active part, by public action and by personal service, in
removing those abuses which depress and impoverish human life. In company with other citizens and
organization they should work for reform, and particularly for such measures as will secure the better care of
children, including real opportunity for an adequate education; protection of the workers against
unemployment, and the provision of healthy homes.
Lambeth Resolution 77, 1920
The Conference stresses the urgency of providing that every family should have a home of its own which
provides for fellowship and privacy.
Lambeth Resolution 45, 1948
The Conference, recognizing that there is a world-wide need for decent and suitable housing, records its
belief that every married couple should have adequate privacy and shelter, for the better bringing up of the
family as well as for the benefit of its own married life; and that national and local governments share fully
with private enterprise the community’s obligations to meet this end.
Lambeth Resolution 123, 1958
The Conference recommends that the Church increasingly work for social goals which really benefit human
beings, e.g. in housing.
Lambeth Resolution 19, 1968
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Policy on Religious Eduction in the Public School System
The Anglican Church in Ontario has identified as one of its major concerns the enhancement of the religious education
component within the public school system.
The Church’s concern focuses on two points:
• The rise of conflict between Faith groups and within Faith groups around the world is troubling. There has been
only minor reflection of this in Canadian society to date, but this is unlikely to continue to be the case as we
increasingly find that the forces of Globalization flow in two directions and not only in one.
• Our current curriculum often assumes that conflicts arise only out of a desire for material gain or by aberrant acts
on the part of individuals. This leaves our students and our communities ill-equipped to deal with these problems
when they arise, or to understand the powerful social forces which have been produced by religious beliefs in the
past, and the powerful role these beliefs play in most parts of the world today.
• Our educational curriculum should make it clear that the major Faiths hold in common the virtues of compassion,
commitment to the good of the community, and tolerance. We believe that bringing about a wider
understanding of this can only strengthen our social fabric at a time when it is under increasing stress.
• The opportunity which is being lost to enable students to understand the social and moral values and virtues on
which our and other societies have been built. Without an understanding of these building blocks of a good
individual and community life, it is very diﬃcult for students to build their own personal systems of social values
and personal virtues because all they have to fall back on is their own limited experience of life.
We believe that the lack of such an education exposure has contributed to many of the social problems we face today,
and will continue to face.
Given this, the Anglican Church in Ontario urges the Provincial government:
1. To establish a mandatory program in education about the major world Faith Groups with courses at both the
primary and secondary levels;
2. To provide academic preparation for teachers with recognized certification in the same way that teachers are
prepared in any other subject.
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Section VII - Journal of Proceedings,
Provincial Synod, Toronto 2015
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Journal of Proceedings, Provincial Synod, Toronto 2015
The thirty-fifth Synod of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario was held at St. Paul’s Church, Bloor St., Toronto, Ontario,
October 14-16, 2015.
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015
Opening prayers were led by Rev. Andrew Wesley in Cree and the Rev. Canon Alyson Barnett-Cowan, chaplain for the
Synod.
The Metropolitan, the Most Reverend Colin Johnson, called the Synod to order. Invited guests to the Synod were the
Primate, The Most Rev. Fred Hiltz, and the Primate’s Principal Secretary, the Ven. Paul Feheley.
Most Rev. Colin Johnson announced that Christopher Riggs, Q.C., was retiring as Chancellor and that Jean Bedard, Q.C.,
had been appointed as his successor. Archbishop Johnson spoke of Chancellor Riggs exceptional service to the Synod
and, in particular, the Bishops and Dioceses of the Province. The Archbishop introduced the new Chancellor-designate,
speaking of his outstanding qualifications and the abilities that he will bring to his new role with the Province.
The Premier of Ontario, Kathleen Wynne, addressed the Synod members. The Premier spoke of the great value of the
work that religious groups in the Province do in speaking on behalf of the poor and burdened in Ontario’s society. She
said that the Anglican Church in Ontario has historically carried a special role in this and thanked the Synod members
for its engagement with her government over the last three years on a number of diﬃcult issues. The Premier invited
the Synod members to continue in this ministry and spoke of a number of matters she would like to see discussed
with us over the next three years including End of Life Issues and how to make palliative care programs the most
eﬀective that they can be, and further engagement between the Synod and her government on its Local Poverty
Reduction Program.
The Rev. Dr. Karen Hamilton, General Secretary of the Canadian Council of Churches, extended warm greetings to the
Synod and spoke of the value of the organization’s work.
ASSESSORS
Moved by:
Rob Welch
Seconded by: Harry Huskins
That Pursuant to Article 8 (b) of the Constitution, that Clare Burns, Sally Gomery and Rob Welch be elected as
assessors.
CARRIED
HONORARY SECRETARIES
Moved by:
David Embury
Seconded by: Mark Kinghan
That Gary Barker be elected as Honorary Lay Secretary and Robert Towler be elected as Honorary Clerical Secretary.
CARRIED
COURTESIES OF THE HOUSE
Courtesies of the House were extended to:
• Rt. Rev. Thomas Corston
• Rev. Dr. Karen Hamilton
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• The Ven. Deborah Lonergan-Freake
OMNIBUS MOTION
Moved by:
Susan De Gruchy
Seconded by: Harry Huskins
1. The appointment of committees be confirmed.
2. The regrets of absences, greetings, and Courtesies of Synod and of the Floor be extended or received, as the
case may be.
3. The Report on Credentials in regard to the number of Episcopal, Clerical, and Lay delegates be regarded as
received, and that the Chair, as soon as may be practicable, shall announce the result of such scrutiny.
4. The agenda be adopted.
5. The minutes of the Thirty-fourth Session of Synod, have taken place in Kingston, Ontario, 2012, be adopted.
6. The Reports and Motions printed or posted on the web as part of the Convening Circular, additional noncanonical motions be received.
7. The actions of the Provincial Executive Council be approved.
CARRIED
Prayers were said before the beginning of the election for Metropolitan. Ballots for the election were then distributed.
Diocese of Moosonee video was shown.
MOOSONEE REPORT
Most Rev. Colin Johnson and Ven. Deborah Lonergan-Freake reported on the progress being made by the challenges
of new ways of working for the Diocese. The reorganization of the Diocese took place at the last Provincial Synod
session and this reorganization has been a success both in stabilizing the diocesan finances and in enabling it to
expand its mission and ministry work.
OPCOTE
The Rt. Rev. Stephen Andrews presented the report. There was a proposal to promote Theological Education through
the development of Social Media Video Tools. An initial video entitled “Ask Bigger Questions” was produced late in the
summer which explored the impact of theological education.
Moved by:
Rt. Rev. Stephen Andrews
Seconded by: Dr. Harry Cleghorn
That this Provincial Synod commend distribution and use of the OPCOTE theological education promotional video “Ask
Bigger Questions” throughout the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario via social media and in Synods, dioceses, parishes,
schools and other appropriate venues.
CARRIED

SECRETARIAT FOR GOVERNMENT RELATIONS
Archdeacon Harry Huskins and Donna Cansfield reported on the work of the Secretariat over the last three years. They
have been involved in the new Ontario Not-for-Profit Corporations Act, The College of Psychotherapists and the
Heritage Act.
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The work has been done jointly with the Lutheran and United Churches. Dr. Mary-Cate Garden has been appointed
our Provincial Representative on Heritage Matters. The Cemeteries Act has been replaced by the new Funerals, Burials
and Cremation Services Act and on Jan. 2, 2016 the present Cemeteries Regulations Unit will be dissolved and
transferred to a new Bereavement Authority of Ontario. The Ontario Human Rights Commission is re-writing its Policy
on Religious Freedom and Creed.
Rt. Rev. P. Poole thanked the Secretariat and the Most Rev. Colin Johnson for all their hard work in the last three years.
CARRIED
ELECTION OF METROPOLITAN
The ballots having been counted, the Rev. Canon Robert Towler announced that The Most Rev. Colin Johnson has been
re-elected as Metropolitan of the Ecclesiastical Province of Ontario.
The Diocese of Huron video was shown.
The Rt. Rev. Patrick Yu led in Prayers and Grace in Mandarin before breaking for Lunch.
Rev. Can. Alyson Barnett-Cowan led the synod in bible study.
SISTERHOOD OF SAINT JOHN THE DIVINE
Sister Constance Joanna gave a short history of the Sisterhood and explained the new companions program. It is a
monasticism rooted in the Anglican tradition. Companions will develop a rhythm of life including public and private
prayer, engage in service to others and learn to live in intentional community.
GENERAL SYNOD MATTERS
The Most Rev. Fred Hiltz, the Primate, reported on the work of the General Synod. The Marks of Mission continue to
strongly influence the mission and work of the Anglican Church of Canada. There will be a review of the new ways of
working. Some committees have fewer face to face meetings. The finances have stabilized. Anglican Appeal is now
known as Giving with Grace. General Synod 2016 will discuss the amendments to the Marriage Canon. Talks are
being held about the possible creation of a fifth province for indigenous peoples. The Archbishop of Canterbury has
scheduled a meeting of the Primates of the Communion.
ELECTION OF PROLOCUTOR
Laura Walton of the Diocese of Toronto was elected Prolocutor on the second ballot.
WORKSHOPS
Four workshops were held.
• Communications and social media – Bill Mous
• Aﬀordable housing – Ryan Weston
• End of life issues – Donna Cansfield
• Aboriginal issues – Rt. Rev. Mark Macdonald
The Diocese of Ontario video was shown.
A banquet was held at St. Paul’s Church and former Senator Hugh Segal, master of Massey College, University of
Toronto, was the guest speaker. He stressed that the Church needs to be at the forefront of social issues.
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THURSDAY, OCTOBER 15
The Synod opened with prayer and bible study led by the Rev. Canon Alyson Barnett-Cowan.
The Diocese of Ottawa video was shown.
KEY NOTE ADDRESS
The Key Note address was given by the Professor William Cavanaugh, DePaul University in Chicago. His subject was
Reimaging the Church in the Public Square. He said that the Church should not seek to go back to a time when it had
political influence and power. The Church is positioned to minister to individuals in a way that removes barriers and
embodies Christ’s radical but very human compassion. Our goal is to be members of one another – to suﬀer and
rejoice together.
After the address a panel and table group discussion moderated by the Rev. Professor Kevin Flynn, director of
Anglican Studies, St. Paul University, Ottawa and consisted of Laurette Glasgow, Canadian Church’s Special
Representative on Parliament Hill, The Rt. Rev. Mark Macdonald, National Indigenous Anglican Bishop and the Rt. Rev.
Stephen Andrews was held. The discussion raised question about how involved the Church should be in trying to
influence public policy. Lobbying is a good thing but people notice more when you go in to the streets and get messy
doing things that other people are not doing and in ways they are not doing it.
The Diocese of Toronto video was shown.
The Rev. Canon Alyson Barnett-Cowan led the synod in prayer and grace before lunch.
Events related to our theme were held:
• Tour of All Saints Church, Sherbourne Street
• Tour of Church House
• Successful Advocacy – Lobbying Politicians led by Donna Cansfield.
A Eucharist with the Installation of the Metropolitan, Prolocutor and Chancellor was held at St. Simon-the-Apostle
Church. A reception followed.
FRIDAY, OCTOBER 16
The Rev. Canon Alyson Barnett-Cowan led the synod in Morning Prayer and Bible Study.
BUDGET
Din Oosterbaan presented the budget and responded to questions asked.
Moved by:
Mark Kinghan
Seconded by: Philip Poole
That the Preliminary Budget for 2016 be amended to reduce the reserves by $21,000.
CARRIED
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Moved by:
Susan De Gruchy
Seconded by: Harry Huskins
That the Preliminary Budget for 2016 be approved.
CARRIED
Moved by:
Susan De Gruchy
Seconded by: Harry Huskins
That the financial review statements be accepted
CARRIED
Moved by:
Susan De Gruchy
Seconded by: Harry Huskins
That the firm of Joe Ruscio Professional Corporation be appointed to conduct the Financial Review for 2015.
CARRIED
OPCOTE presented a motion
That this Provincial Synod authorize and encourage the production of a series of up to four additional videos by
OPCOTE promoting theological education as a resource for equipping lay and ordained ministries and for engaging
questions of general theological interest; and hereby commit financial resources of $21,000 in the coming triennium
for this project from reserves.
After much discussion it was:
Moved by:
Stephen Andrews
Seconded by: David Selzer
That this Motion be referred to Provincial Council for further discussion.
CARRIED
PROVINCIAL EXECUTIVE COUNCIL
The diocesan delegations and the youth delegates caucused at their tables to choose the members of the new
Provincial Council. The new Council will consist of:
• Metropolitan:
Most Rev. Colin Johnson
• Provincial Chancellor:
Jean Bedard, Q.C.
• Prolocutor:
Laura Walton
• Executive Oﬃcers:
Ven. Dr. Harry Huskins, Rev. Susan De Gruchy
• Treasurer:
Din Oosterbaan
• Clerical Secretary:
Rev. Canon Robert Towler
• Lay Secretary:
Garry Barker
• Diocese of Algoma: Rt. Rev. Stephen Andrews, Troy Wilson, Ven. Marie Loewen
• Diocese of Huron: Rt. Rev. Robert Bennett; David Embury, Rev. Canon Timothy G. Connor
• Diocese of Moosonee: Most Rev. Colin Johnson, Ilene Jeremy, Rev. Lisa BrantFrancis
• Diocese of Niagara: Rt. Rev. Michael Bird, Canon David Ricketts, Rev. Canon Dr. Michael Mondloch
• Diocese of Ontario: Rt. Rev. Michael Oulton, Harry Cleghorn, Ven. Wayne Varley
• Diocese of Ottawa: Rt. Rev. John Chapman, Michael Perkin, Rev. Kathryn Otley
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• Diocese of Toronto: Most Rev. Colin Johnson, Suzanne Lawson, Rev. David Giﬀen
• Youth: Viola David, Ontario
PRIORITIES
A range of possible choices as the Provincial Synod’s Priorities for it work in the next three years were discussed by the
members of the Synod. These Priorities will be set by the Provincial Council at its next meeting after careful
consideration of what was said about this at the Synod session.
SOUND SYSTEM
Moved by:
Rt. Rev. Philip Poole
Seconded by: Rt. Rev. Michael Bird
That the Executive be requested to ensure that the next gathering of Provincial Synod be equipped with a sound
system so that every speaker must use a microphone during sessions in common.
CARRIED
Best wishes were extended to Rt. Rev, Terry Dance on his upcoming retirement.
Following an invitation extended by Bishop John Chapman it was agreed that the next Provincial Synod will be held in
Ottawa in 2018.
Moved by:
Susan De Gruchy
Seconded by: Harry Huskins
That the ballots used for the elections be destroyed.
CARRIED
Most Rev. Colin Johnson led the Synod in Prayer.
Moved by:
Susan De Gruchy
That Synod be prorogued.
CARRIED
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